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     Hearing held at:
          White Oak Community Center
          1700 April Lane
          Silver Spring, MD 20904
          (240) 777-6940


     Pursuant to agreement before Chris Schaffer, a digital
reporter and notary public, in and for the State of
Maryland.
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             A P P E A R A N C E S
FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY:
     JOSE THOMMANA, Director Designee
     Montgomery County Department of Transportation


     CHRIS CONKLIN, Deputy Director for Policy
     Montgomery County Department of Transportation


     ANDREW BOSSI, Montgomery County Clerk


     GARY ERENRICH, Special Assistant
     to Director for WMATA


PUBLIC SPEAKERS:
     DAN WILHELM, President
     Greater Colesville Citizens Association


     GAIL FISCHER, property owner


     EILEEN FINNEGAN
     10404 Sweet Briar Parkway


     MICHAEL LENHART
     Lenhart Traffic Consulting
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ZACH MARKS
HOC, Holly Hall Apartments


ERIC PRICE, CEO
HIT Advisors/Consultant to ATU Technology


TIM KAMAS
1232 Catherine Road, Springbrook Manor


LES POWELL
Charles P. Johnson & Associates


LILLIE R. BROWN
2006 Forest Dale Drive


MARGIE GEORGEAN-ROOD, President
Hillandale Citizens Association


DR. MARGO B. HALL
10202 Green Forest Drive, Silver Spring, MD


CLINTON E. SCOTT, JR.
1779 Elton Road
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STEVEN SMITH
10201 Riggs Road


JEFF MCNEIL
Hillandale resident


RICHARD HAYNE
2007 Wooded Way


GARY PERRY, Sr.
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                  P R O C E E D I N G S
     MR. THOMMANA:  All right.  Good evening, everybody.
We are going to go ahead and get started.  If you could
please take a seat.
     Good evening.  Today is Thursday, November 15, 2018.
The time is approximately 7:05 p.m.   We are assembled in
the White Oak Community Rec Center located at 1700 April
Lane in Silver Spring, Maryland.  I am Jose Thommana, the
Designee of the Director of the Montgomery County Department
of Transportation, to conduct this public hearing.
     Here with me today is Mr. Chris Conklin, Deputy
Director of the Department of Transportation, who will
provide information on this project.
     The White Oak Local Area and the transportation
Improvement Program was established by County Council to
fund projects needed within the White Oak Science Gateway
Master Plan Area so that the requirements of the County
subdivision staging policy can be met.  Property owners who
develop or redevelop the property within the planned area
must pay a promotional fee towards transportation
improvements in the program based on the amount and use of
their proposed implement.  The fees paid into this program
are reserved for implementation of projects within the
program.
Alternatively, property owners may construct
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improvements within the program and receive credit towards
the fees that would otherwise need to pay.  These
requirements are in addition to the transportation impact
packs established under County code.
     The White Oak local area transportation improvement
projects include $5 million for undesignated improvements at
the intersection of Maryland Route 650, also known as New
Hampshire Avenue at Powder Mill Road.  This hearing is on
the replacement of the unspecified improvements with
proposed improvements at the intersection of Maryland Route
650 at Powder Mill Road, at the intersection of Maryland
Route 650 at Elton Road, and at the Interstate 495 westbound
on ramp.  The construction of queue jump lane and a new bus
stop on Maryland Route 650 southbound near Elton Road, and
construction of modifications to Elton Road between Maryland
Route 650 and the Prince Georges County line.
     The proposed improvements are depicted graphically on
displays in the hearing room.  The post improvements have
been designated by the – have been designed by the -- Duffie
Companies in association with their Batel (phonetic)
development project on Elton Road and their proposed
development of the Hillandale Gateway on the west side of
Maryland 650.
     Both the Montgomery County Department of
Transportation and the Maryland State Highway Administration
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have reviewed the proposed improvements for technical
adequacy, but neither agency has approved construction of
these improvements at this time.
     The Montgomery County Department of Transportation has
found that the proposed improvements meet the requirements
of the local area transportation improvement program and has
solicited public input regarding implementation of the
proposed improvements through a general public meeting on
May 24th, meetings with representatives of the Hillandale
Civic Association on October 1, a meeting with the Prince
Georges County Department of Public Works and Transportation
on October 15, a meeting with the Friends of White Oak on
October 23rd, a public meeting hosted by and held in Prince
Georges County on October 24, a meeting on the East County
Citizens Advisory Board on November 7th, and public open
house held in this facility on November 8th.
     This hearing is being conducted to formally solicit
input to advise the Director of the Department of
Transportation as required in Chapter 49, Section 53, of the
county code whether to replace unspecified improvements at
the intersection of Maryland 650 and Powder Mill Road with
the proposed improvements.  Both spoken and written input
received through this hearing, in combination with the
technical analysis of the proposed improvements, will form
the basis of the hearing examiner's recommendation to the
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director.
     This hearing follows advertisement hearing in the
Washington Post on October 31, and November 7, 2018, and
publications with numerous other official and unofficial
channels.  The hearing record will be open – will be held
open for written comment until 7:30 a.m. on Monday, November
25, 2018.  All testimony must be received by this time.
Late testimony will not be considered.
     Following the presentation of the proposed
improvements by Chris Conklin on behalf of the Department of
Transportation, each speaker will have three minutes to
speak.  If you have written comments with you, you may
provide those to me as well as for inclusion into the
record.  Sign up for those wishing to testify has been
conducted over the last two weeks and those speakers will be
called upon first.  However, time has been reserved for
additional speakers who did not sign up in advance.  Anyone
not already on the speaker list who wishes to speak, please
fill out an index card with your name and provide it to a
MCDOT representative.  I will select speakers at random from
the cards we receive at the time remaining in this hearing.
     As mentioned, the record will be held open for
additional comment until 7:30 a.m. on Monday, November 25,
2018, so that anyone who cannot complete testimony within
the allotted three minutes may submit comments in written,
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as noted.  Comments can be sent to Ms. Stacy Leach,
Executive Administrative Aid, Montgomery County Department
of Transportation, 10th Floor, 101 Monroe Street, Rockville,
Maryland 20850; or maybe sent via email to
Stacey.Leach@MontgomeryCountyMD.gov.
     Unless it concludes earlier, this hearing will end
promptly at 8:50 p.m. due to the buildings operating hours.
I will advise each speaker when they have 30 seconds
remaining and will strictly limit each speaker to three
minutes of testimony.  I also ask that each speaker identify
themselves by name and address or affiliation, if any, at
the beginning of their remarks.  With that, I will hand it
over to Chris.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening everybody.  Thank you for
coming out once again to participate in this process.  We do
recognize the weather is not the best, but we know many of
you made arrangements to be here today and did not want to
inconvenience you on another date.  That is part of the
reason we have extended the comment deadline to the extent
that we have.  We also recognize the holiday is coming up
and many people have other obligations.  And as a courtesy,
we are giving you the maximum amount of time we can, knowing
that we will also be in and out of the office over that
period and unlikely to digest your comments while we are
digesting Thanksgiving.  So thank you once again.
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     My name is Chris Conklin and I'm the Deputy Director
for Policy for the Montgomery County Department of
Transportation.  Tonight I will briefly summarize the
proposal for improvement in the Hillandale neighborhood that
was substitute for the placeholder improvements in the White
Oak Local Area Transportation Improvement Program.  In
addition to this testimony, supporting technical analysis
developed by Lenhart Associates that has been reviewed by
and accepted by the Department of Transportation will be
included in the record of this public hearing.
     The analysis performed by the Duffie Companies assumed
a build out year of 2040 and 100 percent of the Master Plan
buildout which keeps with the methodology established for
the local area transportation improvement program.  It then
added its own site generated trips for the Hillandale
Gateway project.  And while this is technically sound, it
double counts the trips generated by the project.  By this,
it ensures that the trips that are applied at a more
specific level of detail than the areawide models and is a
conservative representation of the analysis.
     The analysis did not assume any traffic currently
originating from the Hillandale shopping center would change
its behavior.  Traffic exiting the shopping center on to
Powder Mill Road will continue to use Powder Mill Road.  The
traffic exiting onto Elton Road would continue to use Elton
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Road.  Since the original submittal, Lenhart Associates has
submitted supplemental analysis that does reassign shopping
center traffic.  This additional analysis is currently under
review by the Department.
     As previously noted, this analysis has been reviewed
by MCDOT as well as SHA, and both agencies find that the
evaluation and its findings are technically sound.  The
proposed treatments meet the technical criteria established
for the area, which establishes a limit of 80 seconds of
overall intersection delay.  The proposed improvements are
illustrated on display boards in the hearing room and have
been available for public review on many occasions, as
described in the hearing examiner's introduction.
     The proposed improvements include four distinct
components, including two treatments at the intersection of
New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road, a slip ramp and
queue jump at New Hampshire Avenue and Elton Road and
traffic holding along Elton Road.  Along westbound Powder
Milk Road, a right turn lane that is relatively short and
often blocked by queue -- blocked by queued left and through
vehicles.  The proposal is to extend this right turn lane by
over 200 feet to improve its accessibility for right turning
motorists.
     Along eastbound Powder Mill Road approach to New
Hampshire Avenue, the proposal is to widen and add an
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additional lane approaching the intersection.  This widening
directly serves the growth anticipated by the redevelopment
of the Hillandale Gateway site.
     The new slip ramp is proposed as a west leg to the
intersection of New Hampshire Avenue and Elton Road.  This
ramp would provide one way through accessible westbound
Elton Road directly to the outer loop of the Capital
Beltway.  This is focused primarily on relieving traffic
that today generally travels through the Powder Mill Road
intersection to travel between Elton Road and the beltway.
     Included in this slip ramp design is a reconstruction
of the southbound bus stop.  The design proposes to include
a queue jump lane whereby buses may exit the southbound flow
of traffic.  To serve the bus stop it would receive an
advance green signal to allow them to merge back into
traffic at that location.
     Acknowledging commuter concerns regarding cut through
traffic along Elton Road, traffic holding along the road,
which would be implemented prior to, or concurrent with a
slip ramp.  These measures include a mixture of horizontal
and vertical deflection utilizing speed tables, raised
crosswalks, neck downs, and islands to meter speeds through
the Montgomery County portion of Elton Road.
     Unrelated to this analysis and its proposed
treatments, the Prince Georges County Department of Public
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Works and Transportation recently installed speed humps
along their respective portion of Elton Road.
     As previously noted, the delay thresholds for the area
were established by the LATIP at 80 seconds of intersection
delay.  By the year 2040, without any intersection
treatments, the intersections of New Hampshire Avenue and
Powder Mill Road will fail to meet this criteria in the
evening and will nearly fail in the morning.  The proposal
is forecast to result in acceptable traffic operation in the
year 2040 for both the morning and evening periods.
     The proposed treatments at Powder Mill Road and Elton
Road will reduce delay at the Powder Mill Road intersection
by 27 percent in the morning and 39 percent in the evening.
At Elton Road delays would be reduced by 10 percent in the
morning and 24 percent in the evening.  This is accomplished
primarily by enabling traffic on Elton to proceed directly
onto the Beltway instead of using the most common route of
turning right onto New Hampshire Avenue, U-turning at Powder
Mill Road and returning as a right turn onto the existing
Beltway ramp.
     The analysis assumes know the traffic currently using
the Hillandale shopping center on to Powder Mill Road will
divert to Elton Road to use that slip ramp.  However,
observations have found that 20 percent of the traffic along
westbound Powder Mill Road consists of traffic exiting the
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shopping center.  If most of this traffic is assumed to exit
the shopping center on to Elton Road, then compared to the
(inaudible) baseline delays and New Hampshire Avenue and
Powder Mill Road would be reduced by 40 percent in the
morning and 43 percent in the evening.  There would be
minimal effects the operations at the Elton Road
intersection.
     The top concern heard from stakeholders relates to cut
through traffic between Riggs Road and New Hampshire Avenue,
primarily using a route formed by Elton Road and Wooded Way.
Concerns are primarily focused on traffic headed westbound.
From northbound Riggs Road in particular, the Elton/Wooded
Way root is an attractive and direct alternative compared to
waiting through congestion at the intersection of Powder
Mill Road and Riggs Road.  The traffic calming proposed by
the applicant and developed in coordination with the
department is intended to simultaneously reduce speeds while
also discouraging this cut through traffic.
     It is intended that a combination with Prince Georges
County speed humps that the reduced speeds may reduce the
attraction of using this route as a cut through.  Additional
traffic calming alternatives have been shared with the
community including restricting Elton Road or Wooded Way to
one way eastbound, which is reliant upon Prince Georges
County's implementation.  The restriction could also be
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accomplished through signing only, restricting right or left
turns from Riggs Road, either all day or by time of day.
Both restrictions would be expected to significantly reduce
cut through traffic, but also affect neighborhood access.
     However, restriction on Elton Road would also limit
the neighborhoods access to either New Hampshire Avenue or
to New Hampshire Avenue directly.  Additional concerns were
raised by the community in response to these traffic calming
options, particularly the risk of shifting cut through
traffic to other streets as Forest Dale Drive and Forest
Hill Drive.
     The input at this public hearing is ultimately going
to help determine if the proposal is implemented in whole or
in part.  If improved for implementation, the Duffie
Companies would enter into agreement with the Department of
Transportation and also the State Highway Administration to
implement the identified projects.  The estimated cost of
these projects would be approved and credited towards their
White Oak Local Area Transportation Improvement Program fees
and also potentially towards their impact tax.  Any
additional fee or tax owed would be paid to the County.
     If the proposed improvements are not substituted, the
County would accept full payment of the local area
transportation improvement fee and impact tax and
development would proceed without any immediate
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infrastructure development other than is necessary for
immediate site access.  Analysis and design of alternative
treatments for the Hillandale area would occur as part of
the regular local area transportation improvement schedule.
     At this time, the Tech Road, Industrial Road area is
the highest priority in the local area transportation
improvement program, and is scheduled for study by fiscal
year 2023, which is the year 2023 to 2024.  Our fiscal years
vary from the calendar years by six months.  It is therefore
unlikely that without additional council action that
analysis and design of Hillandale will not occur until after
2023.
     We are now seeking any additional input the public
would like to provide.  And with that, I will turn it back
to Jose who will begin recording testimony.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  And I apologize in advance if I
pronounce somebody's name wrong.  So I'm going to go ahead
and start calling each of the speakers up here.  And like I
said before, each speaker will get three minutes.  And when
you are about 30 seconds off, I will sign it and let you
know that you have about 30 seconds left so that you know
your time is coming up.
     So the first person we have is Dan Wilhelm, Greater
Colesville Citizens Association.
MR. WILHELM:  What mic do I use?


Transcript of Public Hearing
Conducted on November 15, 2018 18


PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM







1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


     MR. THOMMANA:  Just the one in the center.
     MR. CONKLIN:  That one is probably not turned on.
     MR. WILHELM:  On top?
     MR. THOMMANA:  Yeah, there you go.
     MR. WILHELM:  Okay.  You have – you have my testimony.
For the record, I'm Dan Wilhelm, president of the Greater
Colesville Citizens Association.  We are a 3500 households a
couple of miles north of here on New Hampshire Avenue.
     Accordingly, a lot of our people travel south of New
Hampshire and go through the subject intersection of Powder
Mill and New Hampshire Avenue.  We support the four proposed
improvements that Chris just talked about.  We also support
the removal of the northbound New Hampshire Avenue bus stop
at the intersection with Powder Mill.  The improvements are
talked about in the White Oak Master Plan, the White Oak
Science Gateway Master Plan, and as Chris mentioned, the
LATIP.
     These plans have been approved by the Council after
extensive public hearings.  As a result, there is no – there
is every reason to approve these improvements.  They are
just the first set of improvements that would be addressed
on build date needs in Hillandale.  And we support the two
sets of improvements at Powder Mill.  We support the slip
ramp at Elton.  Today there is no convenient way to – for
vehicles coming from the shopping center from businesses on
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Elton or from the residences to access the Beltway
westbound.
     There are three roundabout ways for using this.
First, drivers use the shopping center, or they can use the
residential area to access Powder Mill Road, so they can
turn left onto New Hampshire Avenue at the Powder Mill.
This traffic study showed that over 15 percent of vehicles
on Powder Mill fall under this category and therefore are a
major contributor to congestion.
     The second way is for drivers to exit Elton Road onto
northbound New Hampshire Avenue and do the U-turn.  This
method adds vehicles to the subject intersection.  So it
reduces capacity for other drivers.  The third way is the
exit south onto New Hampshire Avenue, go down to Oak View,
do a U-turn, and come back onto the ramp that way.
     The slip ramp provides a direct way to access the
Beltway and reduces congestion at the subject intersection.
It also provide – improves safety on Powder Mill and reduces
congestion on New Hampshire Avenue at Oak View.
     The citizens along Elton Road and Wooded Way in Prince
Georges County have long-standing concern about what they
call cut through traffic.  We have heard the residents say
the issue is speeding and resulting accidents.  Prince
Georges County recently installed speed humps at –
MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
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     MR. WILHELM:  I'm through?
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
     MR. WILHELM:  Thirty seconds.  The proposal here is to
provide a race crosswalk and features, as Chris mentioned,
to reduce the amount of vehicles.  The Hillandale
Association in its January 17, 2017 testimony to the Council
on the LATIP project indicated the congestion on Powder Mill
and Riggs Road as part of the reason for the cut the traffic
on Elton and Wooded Way.  GCC agrees with this assessment
and the same logic applies to the subject intersection.  You
have the rest of my testimony.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Thank you, Dan for your
testimony.
     MR. CONKLIN:  He doesn't have three minutes to restart
the clock.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Yes, I don't.  Okay.  I'm going to call
Ms. Gail Fischer next.
     MS. FISCHER:  Hi.  Can you hear me?
     MR. THOMMANA:  Yeah.
     MS. FISCHER:  Okay.  I'm Gail Fischer.  I own two
properties in Hillandale.  I just have a couple of points.
The first point is that I appreciate all the rounds of
hearings and how extensive your outreach has been.  My
second point is that the traffic at Powder Mill, New
Hampshire, and 495, and south on New Hampshire and North,
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it's a bigger ecosystem.  And my problem with what's going
on is – and my concern with the question before us is that
it is – it's separating a smaller portion of a bigger
problem and I'm unclear when the County is going to address
the bigger problems.
     I understand, for example, that the BRT is going to
take a portion of the traffic supposedly off New Hampshire.
But there's all these little piecemeal proposals of which I
perceive this to be one small piecemeal.  So that's my
biggest concern with the proposal.
     My third point, and second really big concern here, is
that the traffic that will run through the neighborhood,
it's unclear that there is a substantive insignificant
proposal to stop that traffic, that cut through traffic from
coming through.  Given the allure, if you will, that slip
ramp, the trade-off will then be heavier traffic through the
neighborhood in order to preserve transportation fluidity,
if you will.
     So the trade-off I don't feel are very fair.  And it's
not clear to me that the dynamics of that transportation
flow would be beneficial to the neighborhood or even that
there would be equal parity, everyone would benefit.  It
strikes me that in fact, the neighborhood would not benefit
and traffic – the commuters perhaps would, and the developer
would.  And that's it.
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     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Ms. Eileen
Finnegan.
     MS. FINNEGAN:  Hello.  Good evening.  I'm Eileen
Finnegan.  I live at 10404 Sweet Briar Parkway in Hillandale
and I've been active in both the Master Plan and the LATIP
for quite some time.
     The Department of Transportation has a difficult
choice in making a decision regarding the Duffie Companies
proposal for their desired improvements to benefit their
developments in the context of the LATIP.  DOT held two well
attended public participation presentations on the proposals
and heard strong opposition to the slip ramp.  The input at
these meetings should weigh heavily on DOT's decision-
making.
     DOT's responsibility is to carry out the goals of the
pay and go of the scheme initiated with the White Oak
Science Gateway Master Plan, while working toward full
implementation of the Plan.  As DOT is aware, the Plan was
approved as being out of balance with far more density than
anticipated improvements could manage.  New transit options
yet to be implemented are how – are intended to handle much
of the anticipated new density.
     But now is the first test of how DOT will manage this
situation.  By the old school, per project Band-Aid
approach, or by keeping to the LATIP directive to look long-
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term at the whole, with prioritized and well considered
planning.
     The package the developer proposed LAT improvements
with the slip ramp should not be approved.  The harmful
impacts to the Hillandale Forest neighborhood have not been
addressed, while not fully considering the solutions for the
well-known New Hampshire Avenue capacity issues would be
shortsighted at this time.  I urge DOT to move swiftly an do
an independent Hillandale area LATIP study to resolve the
many issues which were never addressed in the original LATIP
study done in 2016/17.  Waiting for the LATIP redo in 2023
is a disservice to the Hillandale residents.  Use part of
the unencumbered 111,000 now in the LATIP, CIP – God, I love
it all.  The results of this effort should be a specific set
of recommendations to be substituted for the $5 million
placeholder currently being used for Hillandale.
     During DOT's – and my last point –
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.  Yeah.
     MS. FINNEGAN:  During DOT's informational briefing,
and tonight, promoting this LAT proposal, DOT staff has made
the point that if this package is not accepted nothing will
be done in Hillandale for a very long time.  This tactic has
fueled questions of the commitment that the County and DOT
has to a community which is traffic and transit challenged
and often feels treated like the poor stepchild to other
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areas within our County.  DOT has the responsibility to
evaluate forward fund projects that are needed in the
development as this proceeds forward.  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MS. FINNEGAN:  I have one copy, but I also intend to
email it too.  There are additional comments.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you. Next, we have Mr. Shane
Pollin.
     MR. POLLIN:  Good evening.  For the record, my name is
Shane Pollin.  I'm the Director of Development of the Duffie
Companies.  The Duffie Companies and family are owners and
managers of the Hillandale Shopping Center, 10,001 New
Hampshire Avenue, Capital Beltway Building 2, and the new
Home2 Suites all on Elton Road.  Our home office was located
on Elton Road for nearly 40 years.  We are also partners
with the Housing Opportunities Commission, working to
redevelop Holly Hall Apartments on the west side of New
Hampshire Avenue south of Powder Mill Road.
     The Duffie family has invested in and been responsible
for much of the development in Hillandale for nearly 60
years.  Needless to say, we are invested in and care about
our community.  Importantly, contrary to what some believe,
we are not here tonight because we need these improvements
to proceed with either our new hotel or Hillandale Gateway.
We do not need these improvements in order to develop our
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newly completed hotel or Hillandale Gateway.
     We are here tonight – all of us are only here tonight
because the Duffie family cares more about actually making
improvements than simply paying fees.  As a member of the
Citizens Advisory Committee, I was an active participant in
the development of the vision of the Master Plan.
Addressing traffic congestion with important issue to all of
those involved in the master planning process.  LATIP is the
program that was adopted to address congestion and now is
the time to approve and LATIP package for Hillandale.  Now,
before we put additional trips on the road and now, before
we make payments that will go someplace else.
     While there is a lot of fear about the potential
unintended consequences, the proposed improvements, what I
have not heard is anyone question the potential
effectiveness of these improvements to reduce congestion.
Residents are understandably fearful of cut through traffic.
They are fearful because we on Elton Road and those on
Wooded Way have witnessed increasing cut through over the
years as more vehicles try to avoid the level of service F
congestion at the New Hampshire Avenue, Powder Mill
intersection.
     Ironically, those most concerned about the cut through
that exists today should be most supportive of these
improvements which are designed to address the congestion
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and delay, which is the very cause of the cut through that
they are reasonably fearing.  This said, we do not want to
do more harm than good.  And it is for that reason that we
have proposed traffic calming on Elton Road and recognize
the possible need for additional mitigation at the
intersection of Riggs and Wooded.
     Please do not let this opportunity to improve the
commutes of over 60,000 vehicles a day who use the troubled
intersection to pass us by.  And please adopt this
improvement package.  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Thank you.  Right on time.
Okay.  Next we have Mr. Mike Lenhart.
     MR. LENHART:  Good evening.  For the record, I'm
Michael Lenhart with Lenhart Traffic Consulting.  And I had
some other things I was going to say, but much of it was
already discussed.  So I'm going to address a few of the
comments that were raised.
     So the LATIP was a regional analysis of the White Oak
area.  As the Duffie Companies was going through the review
and approval of several projects in the area, that brought
us in and asked us to look at the LATIP and those findings.
And we found that there were several errors.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Can you get the mic closer.
     MR. LENHART:  There were several errors in the LATIP
analysis, specifically the – there was an omission of the
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northbound U-turns, 650 at Powder Mill, to return back to
the ramp into southbound 650.  We conducted a new analysis
using the LATIP future 2040 traffic volumes, keeping the
data consistent, where we included the omitted U-turns.
That was reviewed and approved by State Highway
Administration and by DOT, showing that without additional
LATIP improvements, the intersection would not pass the
LATIP thresholds.
     And so at that time, we recommended improvements on
eastbound and westbound Powder Mill Road.  And we – that by
itself does not solve the projected failures at Powder Mill.
So we identified and recommended the slip ramp.  And in
doing so, that eliminate, as mentioned, the northbound
U-turns at Powder Mill.  And also pulls 15 to 20 percent of
the westbound left turn traffic off Powder Mill at 650 by
allowing the Hillandale shopping center to use Elton Road to
get to 650 and to the slip ramp and to south on 650.
     The slip ramp is not intended to be a regional
alternate to Powder Mill Road.  There is a need for local
traffic to have an option to get to the beltway or to get to
650 S. without having to be funneled through the Powder Mill
intersection.  Right now, anybody going south on 650 or
going to the outer loop is funneled through Powder Mill.
And by providing this alternate option for the local
traffic, it creates substantial improvements to the
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intersection.
     We believe that there are ways that neighborhood
traffic calming can be implemented.  As discussed, there are
a number of options.  Are any of them perfect?  Probably
not.  But they will improve the existing situation.  They
will help to address the proposed situation.  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Mr. Zachary
Marks with HOC.
     MR. MARKS:  Good evening.  Zach Marks with HOC.  HOC
is the owner of Holly Hall Apartments and we have been the
owner of Holly Hall Apartments for almost 50 years.  So
we've been in the community for long time.  And so we have
watched things change and we have watched many things not
change.  And we know very much that the East County has been
passed over for investment for very long time.
     So, you know, the Victory Crossing Senior Housing, new
community up at 650 and 29, is one of the first new
residential properties in the area.  And that is partly due
to Commission investment.  And throughout the White Oak
Science Gateway Master Plan process we have consistently
tried our best to create opportunities that, of course,
first further our mission, but also create an opportunity
for reinvestment, at long last, in the East County.
     And so from the perspective of our future residents,
who will be both a senior and multifamily families and
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improved New Hampshire is of vital importance for everything
from getting to work to the future BRT, allowing it to flow
in a much better way that creates an actual second option
for transit, and also allows for, in particular, fire and
rescue.  It's pretty important to our senior communities
that will be both at the north end and the south end of 650
between 29 and 495.
     We also have made sure that, despite the fact that we
were – there is increased density, we have worked very hard
to make sure that we have the opportunity to invest now in
traffic improvements.  Again, we could simply write a check
and move on, but we have consistently worked very hard over
the past few years to make sure that we can do more than
that and simply invest in this intersection.  And frankly,
if something that improves an intersection that is so
vitally in need of it, if something can improve it like this
and we don't do it, then really what – what was the LATIP
for and what improvements could possibly work to begin to
cure that F rating?
     And lastly, as someone who wants to get up in front of
hearings and commissions and boards and councils and
everybody else and talk about why affordable housing
investment should occur in particular neighborhoods, it's
important that we don't create traffic problems; that we
solve traffic problems.  Because if we pay this fee and we
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move on and we don't make those traffic improvements, then a
few years from now nobody's going to remember this hearing.
All they are going to know is that HOC built something new
and the traffic got worse.  Thank you.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Mr. Eric
Price.
     MR. PRICE:  Good evening.  My name is Eric Price.  I'm
the CEO for HIT advisors.  I'm the consultant to the ATU
Technology and Education Center, which is an affiliate of
the Amalgamated Transit Union.  And with me also this
evening is Dan Smith, who is the Assistant General Counsel
at ATU, and representing the president of the ATU, Larry
Hanley.
     As you know, ATU Tech owns the 45-acre campus located
at 10,000 New Hampshire Avenue at the intersection of Powder
Mill Road.  The campus contains the Tommy Douglas Center and
related facilities together with the headquarters and
operations of the Amalgamated Transit Union.  In this
location, ATU Tech, is directly affected by traffic
conditions on New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road.  In
addition, ATU Tech is exploring opportunities to further
develop campus consistent with the White Oak Gateway – White
Oak Science Gateway Master Plan.
While there is no set timetable for such development,


Transcript of Public Hearing
Conducted on November 15, 2018 31


PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM







1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


if and when it occurs, it will likely affect and be affected
by multiple traffic conditions.  We have been briefed by the
Duffie Companies regarding the transportation improvements
that they are proposing be incorporated in the White Oak
Local Area Transportation Improvement Program.  The Duffie
Companies are developing properties on both sides of New
Hampshire Avenue, which is testified today, including Holly
Hall, an immediate abutter to the ATU Tech campus.
     We are appearing today in support of the LATIP
improvement package proposed by the Duffie Companies.  We
believe these specific improvements to be carried out by the
Duffie Companies as part of the LATIP are essential to
improving traffic conditions on New Hampshire Avenue at the
area continues to develop.
     The LATIP is a critical component in the
revitalization of the vision created by the White Oak
Science Gateway Master Plan.  We respectfully request that
the Montgomery County Department of Transportation adopt the
proposed LATIP improvements, specifically the widening of
Powder Mill Road west of New Hampshire Avenue to the
extension of the northbound right turn lane east of New
Hampshire Avenue, and three, the slip ramp along Elton Road
along with associated calming measures.  Thank you for your
consideration.
MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
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     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Next, we have Mr. Tim Kamas.
     MR. KAMAS:  Hello and thank you for letting me speak
tonight.  My name is Tim Kamas.  I live at 1232 Catherine
Road in Springbrook Manor and I work in Hillandale.  I
support the proposed LATIP improvements to make the Master
Plan work and ensure the LATIP dollars stay in East County.
I think that the package should be approved.
     I'm that person who moved to this neighborhood because
of the amenities and connectivity of the area.  These are
good things.  I don't want to drive 30 minutes to the
grocery store to fill a prescription or grab a bite to eat.
My children go to school at St. Luke's across from Mrs.
Kay's on the way downtown.  On occasion, I am picking them
up while I'm at work, so I'm popping out during lunch hour
and picking them up.  Every time I'm making this trip, even
though I know where I'm going, I type it into my GPS and I
add 15 minutes on because it's not uncommon that I'm having
to wait through one, two, sometimes three cycles at the
Powder Mill U-turn.
     When I was just waiting at Elton Road and staring at
where I want to go.  That I'm waiting through two or three
cycles means that there's another 20 or 30 cars ahead of me
that probably feels the same way.  They are not all here.
They may still be trying to get home from work.  I
understand the concerns about cut through traffic, but
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that's coming from another County and will continue to come
from another County.  GPS applications know the fastest way
to get anywhere in real time.  You don't stop the bucket
from filling up by plugging a hole in the bucket.  You turn
off the water.  A one-way sign or a do not enter sign do
just that.  But from what I can tell, that the question for
Prince Georges County.
     Technical analysis is the key discussion point here.
A bunch of really smart people took a lot of time and used
facts, studies, and calculations to come up with these
plans.  Then a bunch of really smart people at DOT and SHA
analyzed them with facts and calculations.  And their
conclusion was that these plans work.  I very much
appreciate your time and any help you can provide in getting
me to my kids quicker and home in time for dinner.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.  Don't overestimate our
intelligence.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Next we have Les Powell.
     MR. POWELL:  For the record, my name is Les Powell
with the firm of Charles P. Johnson & Associates.  And I
worked at Charles P. Johnson & Associates for 34 years.  We
are located at 1751 Elton Road.  And there are approximately
anywhere from 60 to 75 people in our office, 50 percent of
which have found that the traffic at the intersections of
Elton Road, Powder Mill Road, the speed on Elton Road are so
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horrible that for us to go ahead and leave, of which the 50
percent of us have to head westbound on 495, we actually cut
through the residential neighborhood by going down Elton to
Wooded Way to Green Forest out to Powder Mill.
     And then we fight with the three lanes of left turning
traffic to try make it over to the westbound ramp.  The slip
ramp would solve a lot of those problems that – the 30 or so
of us that have to cut to that neighborhood would stop doing
it.  We would all – we used to have that, the pleasure of
having that slip ramp.  It was there for a temporary time,
probably 15 years ago.  And it's greatly missed.  Tim spoke
with the three cycles of lights.  That's just at the U-turn.
Sometimes it takes three cycles of lights just to get on to
New Hampshire Avenue northbound to be able to get there to
make that U-turn.
     The traffic calming devices on Elton Road would help
the employees in our company, as quite a few of them, on
nice days we walk up to the shopping center to get lunch.
And it would make it a lot easier to cross over Elton Road
because of the speeds that we have there.  Thank you very
much for your time.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Ms. Lillie
Brown.
MS. BROWN:  My name is Lillie Rashard (phonetic)


Transcript of Public Hearing
Conducted on November 15, 2018 35


PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM







1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


Brown.  I live at 2006 Forest Dale Drive.  I'm in the
Hillandale Forest section of Hillandale.  Our community is –
would be directly negatively impacted by the slip ramp.  We
already have a serious concern with cut through traffic and
speeders.  We have safety issues in our streets and we beg
you to look at what this will do to our community.  We are
concerned about safety on our neighborhood streets.
     I have heard talk about New Hampshire and Powder Mill
Road, traffic there.  But what about the residential
streets?  I haven't heard enough concern about what this
improvement will do to our community streets.  We have a
right to feel safe in our neighborhood.  And at this time,
we are not feeling safe with the cut through traffic, the
volume, and the speed, and the aggression.  When we are
backing out of our driveway or turning into the driveway,
they are aggressive drivers forcing us off – almost
literally forcing us off the street.
     And I feel like that the elected officials and the
staff have a responsibility for safety when you make
decisions.  Montgomery County currently is dealing with
fatalities on the streets.  So we are cautioning you not to
push the fatalities on our residential streets.  It's just a
matter of time with all of this traffic cutting through.
     There is talk about maybe making Riggs and Wooded Way
a one-way out of the neighborhood.  That would push the
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traffic to Forest Dale or Forest Hill.  So all we are doing
now is kicking the can down the street from one area to
another.  We would like to see a solution to the problem.
So as you move forward with the decision, please look at how
it's impacting the entire area.  I can understand what is
happening –
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.  Thirty seconds.
     MR. POWELL:  Thirty seconds – in the neighborhood and
in the shopping center.  But then there are – what about the
residential area?  We have a concern as well and it's
safety.  Thank you.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next we have Ms. Margie
Georgean-Rood.
     MS. GEORGEAN-ROOD:  Good evening.  My name is Margie
Georgean-Rood.  I am the president of the Hillandale
Citizens Association, and this is our statement from the
executive board.
     The Hillandale Citizens Association appreciates the
Duffie Companies investment in our community.  However, the
current White Oak LATIP proposal in the Hillandale community
specifically to install a slip ramp at the intersection of
New Hampshire Avenue, Elton Road, and the Capital Beltway is
not acceptable due to the safety issues it would cause a
long our adjacent residential streets.
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     In particular, the slip ramp included in this proposal
will make cut through traffic in Hillandale Forest all the
more attractive.  This creates real pedestrian safety,
quality of life, and diminishing property value issues in
our community that must be considered in any plan moving
forward.
     The New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road
intersection is the only intersection from the 2016 LATIP
study without a plan in place for transportation
improvements promised by the LATIP process.  There are also
two adjacent areas that need to be included in any traffic
study to adequately address traffic and safety issues in
Hillandale.  These intersections, Powder Mill Road and Riggs
Road, and the portion of New Hampshire Avenue between the
Capital Beltway and Oak View Drive must be considered as
part of a truly comprehensive look at the traffic challenges
in this area.
     As much as we agree on the need to see improvements to
the traffic problems in Hillandale and appreciate the Duffie
Companies efforts to invest directly in the community, we do
not agree that the slip ramp is the right improvement.  The
proposed slip ramp will make cut through traffic in
Hillandale Forest, a current and long-standing safety issue,
even worse.  Our community requires a detailed traffic and
right-of-way study in order to holistically assess the
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improvements needed in our area.  We encourage County
officials to fulfill the other promises of the LATIP, which
are coordination, equity, and transparency with a thorough –
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
     MS. GEORGEAN-ROOD:  -- independent evaluation of this
critical court order.  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next we have Margo B Hall.
Ms. Margo Hall.
     MS. HALL:  Good evening.  I'm Dr. Margo B. Hall.  I
reside at 10202 Green Forest Drive, Silver Spring, Maryland,
and I'm a resident of Hillandale Forest community.
     Just a few points that I would like to make.  I, as a
resident, would not encourage the development of the slip
ramp.  I recognize the problems that we have a traffic in
this area, as in many areas.  However, over the years that I
have been in the community, which are considerable, a number
of years, there has been no community engagement with all of
the stakeholders that would be affected by a slip ramp and
the additional engagement of transportation through a
community that have been designed many years ago and not for
the increased traffic there.
     The traffic studies that have been done have been
wonderful, but they have not included the internal community
through which these problems are attempting to be solved.
There is a need to understand what the residence of this
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densely populated small part of the community that is
bi-county be considered.  We pay taxes.  We are proud of our
community.  We are proud of its reputation.
     Now what happens with the slip ramp and whichever of
these solutions is proposed, is that it has a negative
impact on our quality, on the years of our life because of
safety concerns, and on school buses that have to go to the
community, on local issues like trash collection.  Currently
those streets are not designed to handle the frequency and
the weight of the traffic that comes through.  As it is, if
we park on both sides of the streets that are involved
throughway, barely can a single car go either up the hill on
Wooded Way to Elton Road or down the hill.
     Now with the inclusion of additional traffic, you're
going to interrupt people's property lines in order to
expand the streets to engage this additional traffic, one
way or both ways.  This is going to severely limit our
ability to have a walkable community, a friendly community.
And there is no value added, honestly, for the interior of
our community.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
     MS. HALL:  We want this to be a valuable, wonderful
place to live.  But this solution to the slip ramp as a
solution is not appropriate at this time.  Thank you.
MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
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     MR. THOMMANA:  That was our last – do we have anybody
that signed up?
     MR. CONKLIN:  If anybody else would like to sign up at
this time, please do so.  See Gary and he can fill out a
card.  We have time.  We will get as many speakers in as we
can.
     MR. BOSSI:  First name is Clinton E. Scott Jr.
     MR. SCOTT:  Good evening.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening.
     MR. SCOTT:  I am Clinton E. Scott Jr.  I reside at
1779 Elton Road.  I've been a resident for 39 years.
     I can tell you with the first experience of the slip
ramp about 15 years ago, it had a very negative impact on
our community.  And by negative impact, I mean there were
significant safety issues.  You've heard some of these
safety issues voiced today.  There was also increased
traffic.  I know you've heard about cut through traffic, but
I want to reiterate that that is a very serious problem.
     I don't see a solution with this Beltway slip ramp.
It didn't solve the problem 15 years ago.  It aggravated the
problem.  And it's not the correct solution today.  I've
spoken continuously with fellow residents on Elton Road and
Wooded Way over 39 years.  No one is in favor of a Beltway
slip ramp.  So I'm here today – I've already submitted
written testimony – to once and for all, let's put this
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issue to rest.  Let's kill it and move on to a more
acceptable solution.  Thank you.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MR. BOSSI:  Steven Smith.
     MR. SMITH:  Good evening.  My name is Steven Smith and
I reside at 10201 Riggs Road in the immediate area.
     And I support the residents of Montgomery County right
across the street from me who are in opposition to the
proposed slip ramp.  I have no position on the other
proposed traffic projects.  I'm in opposition to the slip
ramp because of the increased traffic it will bring onto
Riggs Road, bring onto Elton, and Wooded Way.  There is a
lot of traffic authority diverting onto those thoroughfares.
     And I support a broader area of investigation rather
than letting the beltway be the cutoff point for the transit
analysis.  Actually, I would go down past Oak View to
Adelphi because a lot of the traffic problems at the Powder
Mill and Beltway area result from northbound traffic that's
trying to enter the Beltway.  There is a single entrance
ramp for both eastbound and westbound traffic.
     Putting a slip ramp – and a lot of the turnaround
traffic, the U-turn traffic at Powder Mill northbound off of
New Hampshire to get onto the westbound, it's people who are
avoiding the backup on northbound New Hampshire trying to
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get onto that single entrance ramp.  They are coming up,
going under the beltway on New Hampshire and making U-turns
to go westbound.  So putting a slip ramp there, they're just
going to make that left turn there on the slip ramp
regardless of whether or not there is a no left turn sign or
not.
     The current traffic that has been counted as making a
U-turn there is not negligible, but it's well below the
sensitivity rating.  And I don't think that putting that –
putting the residents at risk there for the sake of a
negligible amount of U-turn traffic is going to solve the
problem.  Because what else is going to happen is that
people are going to use Riggs Road northbound to take the
Elton Way – Wooded Way, Elton onto the slip ramp to avoid
standing in traffic on northbound New Hampshire.
     Currently the traffic that is coming from College Park
is going to – taking Adelphi Road to New Hampshire, going up
and stacking up for several blocks trying to get onto that
single entrance.  And what they're going to do is once there
is a slip ramp there, they're going to come up Riggs Road
and go down to that neighborhood.
     The other thing that hasn't been taken into
consideration is the impact of the recently enacted or
activated traffic signal for the inbound or the outer –
excuse me – the inner loop traffic that's going southbound
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on to New Hampshire.  That is not backing up traffic on
southbound New Hampshire and these people are aggravated at
Elton –
     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Your time is up so I'm going to
have to –
     MR. SMITH:  Okay.
     MR. THOMMANA:  And you do have written testimony.
     MR. SMITH:  They get at Elton and they are now coming
up Elton to go down New Hampshire or go down Riggs Road.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MR. SMITH:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  If there's anybody else?
     MR. BOSSI:  We have three, maybe four more.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.
     MR. BOSSI:  Jeff McNeil.
     MR. MCNEIL:  Hello.  Jeff McNeil, Hillandale resident.
I would like to take a second to say that I'm mere days away
from my masters in real estate development from the
University of Maryland.  While I've been there I've studied
under Professor extraordinaire, Zach Marks.  Love that guy.
     MR. CONKLIN:  When are finals?  Just kidding.
     MR. MARKS:  You're just --
     MR. CONKLIN:  We will give you five extra seconds.
MR. MARKS:  -- working on your grade?
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     MR. MCNEIL:  Yeah.  A mere weeks away.  I'm here as a
resident to say I have no doubt that the studies that have
shown the slip ramp will take trips out of the intersection
and help the traffic in there.  I'm concerned though that
the slip ramp will also make the cut through traffic worse.
And I don't believe that we've identified the right
combination of traffic calming measures to fully protect
that part of the neighborhood.
     I would like to acknowledge that we have met with
Montgomery County DOT and some of the things that they have
proposed, I think that they are positive.  But I don't think
we've identified it fully yet.  So I hope that we can come
to a conclusion on those before we move forward.  But until
we do that, it's hard, from a resident perspective, to
support putting the slip ramp in.  Okay.  That's all.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MR. BOSSI:  We have two more.  Richard Hayne.
     MR. HAYNE:  Yeah.  My name is Richard Hayne.  I live
at 2007 Wooded Way on the curve.  And I did send some
comments in and I copied some local people in the community
and Eileen was kind enough to answer many of the questions
for me, that I had posed.
     I'm here to speak – I'm glad that there are
improvements in the community.  I have no negative animus
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towards the Duffie Company or – in fact, I think of you most
of those improvements positively.  And I'm glad that you are
doing the transportation studies in working on this.  This
is important to our community.  But I do oppose the slip
ramp.
     I've lived in Chicago, Houston, Columbus, Ohio,
Detroit.  I've driven in Jakarta, London, Paris.  There's
going to be congestion in big cities, okay?  And I don't
like it, but what I want to talk about is accidents,
accidents on Wooded Way.  There were approximately five
accidents on Wooded Way, the upper half of Wooded Way, in
the first six months of this year.  I want to talk about
human bodies that are hauled off in ambulances.
     I want to talk about property that is damaged,
people's front yard, trees are knocked – small trees,
obviously, are knocked down.  I want to talk about the car
that goes into a telephone pole and you rush out there
because we hear the accident, you know?  We are right there.
And we rush out.  And this was not this year.  And this
woman was screaming because the woman in the passenger seat
is comatose.  I don't know if she lived.  I don't know if
she died.  You know, the ambulance comes, and I don't get in
their way.
     That, to me, is really important stuff there.  You
know, it's more important than convenience, inconvenience.
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It's more important than waiting for a little longer in
traffic, which everybody does in urban areas.  I'm glad
you're trying to reduce it, but you're going to increase
accidents.  And I don't know how you can be held responsible
for that, but I wish there was a way to be held accountable
for decisions that harm human bodies and cause --
     MR. THOMMANA:   Thirty seconds.
     MR. HAYNES:  -- tens of thousands of dollars of
property damage and damage to cars. I mean, local property
and damaged cars.  I do not understand the urgency of doing
this and I ask you to wait until you have a clear plan that
will reduce the traffic and eliminate the slip ramp.  Thank
you.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MR. BOSSI:  The last person on the list is Gary Perry,
Sr.
     MR. PERRY:  Hi, good afternoon.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening.
     MR. PERRY:  Good evening, yeah.  I want to reiterate
the gentleman there.  I think he pretty much put it in a
nutshell.  I live in Hillandale Forest also.  And safety,
like Ms. Brown said, safety would be a primary concern.  But
also, you know, I tried to get a full visual of how this is
going to be.  I hope it's not a foregone conclusion and this


Transcript of Public Hearing
Conducted on November 15, 2018 47


PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM







1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


is just a formality.  I just want to say that.
     But I try to get a visual how this actually will work
out.  And I also give people talking about convenience, but
we have a lot at stake here in this community.  We already
have traffic of tractor-trailers coming through and many
accidents, like the gentleman said.
     But I want to put emphasis on, once the word gets out
that this slip ramp is there, it's definite, without a
doubt, there will be excessive traffic coming through
Wooded, coming through Forest Dale, coming through Forest
Hill.  It's – and I heard the gentleman back there talk
about kids, picking his kids – that's a great thing.  But we
have kids living in the neighborhood.  We have young kids
riding bikes.  It's just a regular neighborhood.
     Now, when this traffic becomes congested, which it
will, let's not fool ourselves.  It sounds like we trying to
flower this up, or paint this as something it's not.  It
will be congested.  And as a stakeholder in this community,
not only the safety, but our property values, like I heard a
couple of residents say, our property values will plummet.
     So I'm trying to weigh between the convenience and the
skin in the game and it just doesn't weigh out.  In my
opinion, it doesn't weigh out.  So I just wanted to just add
that.  Thank you.
MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
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     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Nobody else?  Okay.  Well,
we've gone through all the testimonies.  Thank you everybody
for coming out.  If --
     MR. CONKLIN:  I would just like to thank everybody for
their thoughtful and polite comments and we look forward to
sort of collecting all of this, digesting all the
information before us in making a decision.  I don't have a
specific timeline on that, but we will be sure to
communicate whatever decision is reached when that occurs.
We have a few more minutes.  If there are any specific
questions, we can answer them at the displays in the back.
Thank you again.
     (Off the record at 8:12 p.m.)
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                  P R O C E E D I N G S
     MR. THOMMANA:  All right.  Good evening, everybody.
We are going to go ahead and get started.  If you could
please take a seat.
     Good evening.  Today is Thursday, November 15, 2018.
The time is approximately 7:05 p.m.   We are assembled in
the White Oak Community Rec Center located at 1700 April
Lane in Silver Spring, Maryland.  I am Jose Thommana, the
Designee of the Director of the Montgomery County Department
of Transportation, to conduct this public hearing.
     Here with me today is Mr. Chris Conklin, Deputy
Director of the Department of Transportation, who will
provide information on this project.
     The White Oak Local Area and the transportation
Improvement Program was established by County Council to
fund projects needed within the White Oak Science Gateway
Master Plan Area so that the requirements of the County
subdivision staging policy can be met.  Property owners who
develop or redevelop the property within the planned area
must pay a promotional fee towards transportation
improvements in the program based on the amount and use of
their proposed implement.  The fees paid into this program
are reserved for implementation of projects within the
program.
Alternatively, property owners may construct
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improvements within the program and receive credit towards
the fees that would otherwise need to pay.  These
requirements are in addition to the transportation impact
packs established under County code.
     The White Oak local area transportation improvement
projects include $5 million for undesignated improvements at
the intersection of Maryland Route 650, also known as New
Hampshire Avenue at Powder Mill Road.  This hearing is on
the replacement of the unspecified improvements with
proposed improvements at the intersection of Maryland Route
650 at Powder Mill Road, at the intersection of Maryland
Route 650 at Elton Road, and at the Interstate 495 westbound
on ramp.  The construction of queue jump lane and a new bus
stop on Maryland Route 650 southbound near Elton Road, and
construction of modifications to Elton Road between Maryland
Route 650 and the Prince Georges County line.
     The proposed improvements are depicted graphically on
displays in the hearing room.  The post improvements have
been designated by the – have been designed by the -- Duffie
Companies in association with their Batel (phonetic)
development project on Elton Road and their proposed
development of the Hillandale Gateway on the west side of
Maryland 650.
     Both the Montgomery County Department of
Transportation and the Maryland State Highway Administration
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have reviewed the proposed improvements for technical
adequacy, but neither agency has approved construction of
these improvements at this time.
     The Montgomery County Department of Transportation has
found that the proposed improvements meet the requirements
of the local area transportation improvement program and has
solicited public input regarding implementation of the
proposed improvements through a general public meeting on
May 24th, meetings with representatives of the Hillandale
Civic Association on October 1, a meeting with the Prince
Georges County Department of Public Works and Transportation
on October 15, a meeting with the Friends of White Oak on
October 23rd, a public meeting hosted by and held in Prince
Georges County on October 24, a meeting on the East County
Citizens Advisory Board on November 7th, and public open
house held in this facility on November 8th.
     This hearing is being conducted to formally solicit
input to advise the Director of the Department of
Transportation as required in Chapter 49, Section 53, of the
county code whether to replace unspecified improvements at
the intersection of Maryland 650 and Powder Mill Road with
the proposed improvements.  Both spoken and written input
received through this hearing, in combination with the
technical analysis of the proposed improvements, will form
the basis of the hearing examiner's recommendation to the
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as noted.  Comments can be sent to Ms. Stacy Leach,
Executive Administrative Aid, Montgomery County Department
of Transportation, 10th Floor, 101 Monroe Street, Rockville,
Maryland 20850; or maybe sent via email to
Stacey.Leach@MontgomeryCountyMD.gov.
     Unless it concludes earlier, this hearing will end
promptly at 8:50 p.m. due to the buildings operating hours.
I will advise each speaker when they have 30 seconds
remaining and will strictly limit each speaker to three
minutes of testimony.  I also ask that each speaker identify
themselves by name and address or affiliation, if any, at
the beginning of their remarks.  With that, I will hand it
over to Chris.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening everybody.  Thank you for
coming out once again to participate in this process.  We do
recognize the weather is not the best, but we know many of
you made arrangements to be here today and did not want to
inconvenience you on another date.  That is part of the
reason we have extended the comment deadline to the extent
that we have.  We also recognize the holiday is coming up
and many people have other obligations.  And as a courtesy,
we are giving you the maximum amount of time we can, knowing
that we will also be in and out of the office over that
period and unlikely to digest your comments while we are
digesting Thanksgiving.  So thank you once again.
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director.
     This hearing follows advertisement hearing in the
Washington Post on October 31, and November 7, 2018, and
publications with numerous other official and unofficial
channels.  The hearing record will be open – will be held
open for written comment until 7:30 a.m. on Monday, November
25, 2018.  All testimony must be received by this time.
Late testimony will not be considered.
     Following the presentation of the proposed
improvements by Chris Conklin on behalf of the Department of
Transportation, each speaker will have three minutes to
speak.  If you have written comments with you, you may
provide those to me as well as for inclusion into the
record.  Sign up for those wishing to testify has been
conducted over the last two weeks and those speakers will be
called upon first.  However, time has been reserved for
additional speakers who did not sign up in advance.  Anyone
not already on the speaker list who wishes to speak, please
fill out an index card with your name and provide it to a
MCDOT representative.  I will select speakers at random from
the cards we receive at the time remaining in this hearing.
     As mentioned, the record will be held open for
additional comment until 7:30 a.m. on Monday, November 25,
2018, so that anyone who cannot complete testimony within
the allotted three minutes may submit comments in written,
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     My name is Chris Conklin and I'm the Deputy Director
for Policy for the Montgomery County Department of
Transportation.  Tonight I will briefly summarize the
proposal for improvement in the Hillandale neighborhood that
was substitute for the placeholder improvements in the White
Oak Local Area Transportation Improvement Program.  In
addition to this testimony, supporting technical analysis
developed by Lenhart Associates that has been reviewed by
and accepted by the Department of Transportation will be
included in the record of this public hearing.
     The analysis performed by the Duffie Companies assumed
a build out year of 2040 and 100 percent of the Master Plan
buildout which keeps with the methodology established for
the local area transportation improvement program.  It then
added its own site generated trips for the Hillandale
Gateway project.  And while this is technically sound, it
double counts the trips generated by the project.  By this,
it ensures that the trips that are applied at a more
specific level of detail than the areawide models and is a
conservative representation of the analysis.
     The analysis did not assume any traffic currently
originating from the Hillandale shopping center would change
its behavior.  Traffic exiting the shopping center on to
Powder Mill Road will continue to use Powder Mill Road.  The
traffic exiting onto Elton Road would continue to use Elton
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Road.  Since the original submittal, Lenhart Associates has
submitted supplemental analysis that does reassign shopping
center traffic.  This additional analysis is currently under
review by the Department.
     As previously noted, this analysis has been reviewed
by MCDOT as well as SHA, and both agencies find that the
evaluation and its findings are technically sound.  The
proposed treatments meet the technical criteria established
for the area, which establishes a limit of 80 seconds of
overall intersection delay.  The proposed improvements are
illustrated on display boards in the hearing room and have
been available for public review on many occasions, as
described in the hearing examiner's introduction.
     The proposed improvements include four distinct
components, including two treatments at the intersection of
New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road, a slip ramp and
queue jump at New Hampshire Avenue and Elton Road and
traffic holding along Elton Road.  Along westbound Powder
Milk Road, a right turn lane that is relatively short and
often blocked by queue -- blocked by queued left and through
vehicles.  The proposal is to extend this right turn lane by
over 200 feet to improve its accessibility for right turning
motorists.
     Along eastbound Powder Mill Road approach to New
Hampshire Avenue, the proposal is to widen and add an
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Works and Transportation recently installed speed humps
along their respective portion of Elton Road.
     As previously noted, the delay thresholds for the area
were established by the LATIP at 80 seconds of intersection
delay.  By the year 2040, without any intersection
treatments, the intersections of New Hampshire Avenue and
Powder Mill Road will fail to meet this criteria in the
evening and will nearly fail in the morning.  The proposal
is forecast to result in acceptable traffic operation in the
year 2040 for both the morning and evening periods.
     The proposed treatments at Powder Mill Road and Elton
Road will reduce delay at the Powder Mill Road intersection
by 27 percent in the morning and 39 percent in the evening.
At Elton Road delays would be reduced by 10 percent in the
morning and 24 percent in the evening.  This is accomplished
primarily by enabling traffic on Elton to proceed directly
onto the Beltway instead of using the most common route of
turning right onto New Hampshire Avenue, U-turning at Powder
Mill Road and returning as a right turn onto the existing
Beltway ramp.
     The analysis assumes know the traffic currently using
the Hillandale shopping center on to Powder Mill Road will
divert to Elton Road to use that slip ramp.  However,
observations have found that 20 percent of the traffic along
westbound Powder Mill Road consists of traffic exiting the
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additional lane approaching the intersection.  This widening
directly serves the growth anticipated by the redevelopment
of the Hillandale Gateway site.
     The new slip ramp is proposed as a west leg to the
intersection of New Hampshire Avenue and Elton Road.  This
ramp would provide one way through accessible westbound
Elton Road directly to the outer loop of the Capital
Beltway.  This is focused primarily on relieving traffic
that today generally travels through the Powder Mill Road
intersection to travel between Elton Road and the beltway.
     Included in this slip ramp design is a reconstruction
of the southbound bus stop.  The design proposes to include
a queue jump lane whereby buses may exit the southbound flow
of traffic.  To serve the bus stop it would receive an
advance green signal to allow them to merge back into
traffic at that location.
     Acknowledging commuter concerns regarding cut through
traffic along Elton Road, traffic holding along the road,
which would be implemented prior to, or concurrent with a
slip ramp.  These measures include a mixture of horizontal
and vertical deflection utilizing speed tables, raised
crosswalks, neck downs, and islands to meter speeds through
the Montgomery County portion of Elton Road.
     Unrelated to this analysis and its proposed
treatments, the Prince Georges County Department of Public


16
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


shopping center.  If most of this traffic is assumed to exit
the shopping center on to Elton Road, then compared to the
(inaudible) baseline delays and New Hampshire Avenue and
Powder Mill Road would be reduced by 40 percent in the
morning and 43 percent in the evening.  There would be
minimal effects the operations at the Elton Road
intersection.
     The top concern heard from stakeholders relates to cut
through traffic between Riggs Road and New Hampshire Avenue,
primarily using a route formed by Elton Road and Wooded Way.
Concerns are primarily focused on traffic headed westbound.
From northbound Riggs Road in particular, the Elton/Wooded
Way root is an attractive and direct alternative compared to
waiting through congestion at the intersection of Powder
Mill Road and Riggs Road.  The traffic calming proposed by
the applicant and developed in coordination with the
department is intended to simultaneously reduce speeds while
also discouraging this cut through traffic.
     It is intended that a combination with Prince Georges
County speed humps that the reduced speeds may reduce the
attraction of using this route as a cut through.  Additional
traffic calming alternatives have been shared with the
community including restricting Elton Road or Wooded Way to
one way eastbound, which is reliant upon Prince Georges
County's implementation.  The restriction could also be
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accomplished through signing only, restricting right or left
turns from Riggs Road, either all day or by time of day.
Both restrictions would be expected to significantly reduce
cut through traffic, but also affect neighborhood access.
     However, restriction on Elton Road would also limit
the neighborhoods access to either New Hampshire Avenue or
to New Hampshire Avenue directly.  Additional concerns were
raised by the community in response to these traffic calming
options, particularly the risk of shifting cut through
traffic to other streets as Forest Dale Drive and Forest
Hill Drive.
     The input at this public hearing is ultimately going
to help determine if the proposal is implemented in whole or
in part.  If improved for implementation, the Duffie
Companies would enter into agreement with the Department of
Transportation and also the State Highway Administration to
implement the identified projects.  The estimated cost of
these projects would be approved and credited towards their
White Oak Local Area Transportation Improvement Program fees
and also potentially towards their impact tax.  Any
additional fee or tax owed would be paid to the County.
     If the proposed improvements are not substituted, the
County would accept full payment of the local area
transportation improvement fee and impact tax and
development would proceed without any immediate
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     MR. THOMMANA:  Just the one in the center.
     MR. CONKLIN:  That one is probably not turned on.
     MR. WILHELM:  On top?
     MR. THOMMANA:  Yeah, there you go.
     MR. WILHELM:  Okay.  You have – you have my testimony.
For the record, I'm Dan Wilhelm, president of the Greater
Colesville Citizens Association.  We are a 3500 households a
couple of miles north of here on New Hampshire Avenue.
     Accordingly, a lot of our people travel south of New
Hampshire and go through the subject intersection of Powder
Mill and New Hampshire Avenue.  We support the four proposed
improvements that Chris just talked about.  We also support
the removal of the northbound New Hampshire Avenue bus stop
at the intersection with Powder Mill.  The improvements are
talked about in the White Oak Master Plan, the White Oak
Science Gateway Master Plan, and as Chris mentioned, the
LATIP.
     These plans have been approved by the Council after
extensive public hearings.  As a result, there is no – there
is every reason to approve these improvements.  They are
just the first set of improvements that would be addressed
on build date needs in Hillandale.  And we support the two
sets of improvements at Powder Mill.  We support the slip
ramp at Elton.  Today there is no convenient way to – for
vehicles coming from the shopping center from businesses on
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infrastructure development other than is necessary for
immediate site access.  Analysis and design of alternative
treatments for the Hillandale area would occur as part of
the regular local area transportation improvement schedule.
     At this time, the Tech Road, Industrial Road area is
the highest priority in the local area transportation
improvement program, and is scheduled for study by fiscal
year 2023, which is the year 2023 to 2024.  Our fiscal years
vary from the calendar years by six months.  It is therefore
unlikely that without additional council action that
analysis and design of Hillandale will not occur until after
2023.
     We are now seeking any additional input the public
would like to provide.  And with that, I will turn it back
to Jose who will begin recording testimony.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  And I apologize in advance if I
pronounce somebody's name wrong.  So I'm going to go ahead
and start calling each of the speakers up here.  And like I
said before, each speaker will get three minutes.  And when
you are about 30 seconds off, I will sign it and let you
know that you have about 30 seconds left so that you know
your time is coming up.
     So the first person we have is Dan Wilhelm, Greater
Colesville Citizens Association.
MR. WILHELM:  What mic do I use?
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Elton or from the residences to access the Beltway
westbound.
     There are three roundabout ways for using this.
First, drivers use the shopping center, or they can use the
residential area to access Powder Mill Road, so they can
turn left onto New Hampshire Avenue at the Powder Mill.
This traffic study showed that over 15 percent of vehicles
on Powder Mill fall under this category and therefore are a
major contributor to congestion.
     The second way is for drivers to exit Elton Road onto
northbound New Hampshire Avenue and do the U-turn.  This
method adds vehicles to the subject intersection.  So it
reduces capacity for other drivers.  The third way is the
exit south onto New Hampshire Avenue, go down to Oak View,
do a U-turn, and come back onto the ramp that way.
     The slip ramp provides a direct way to access the
Beltway and reduces congestion at the subject intersection.
It also provide – improves safety on Powder Mill and reduces
congestion on New Hampshire Avenue at Oak View.
     The citizens along Elton Road and Wooded Way in Prince
Georges County have long-standing concern about what they
call cut through traffic.  We have heard the residents say
the issue is speeding and resulting accidents.  Prince
Georges County recently installed speed humps at –
MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
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     MR. WILHELM:  I'm through?
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
     MR. WILHELM:  Thirty seconds.  The proposal here is to
provide a race crosswalk and features, as Chris mentioned,
to reduce the amount of vehicles.  The Hillandale
Association in its January 17, 2017 testimony to the Council
on the LATIP project indicated the congestion on Powder Mill
and Riggs Road as part of the reason for the cut the traffic
on Elton and Wooded Way.  GCC agrees with this assessment
and the same logic applies to the subject intersection.  You
have the rest of my testimony.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Thank you, Dan for your
testimony.
     MR. CONKLIN:  He doesn't have three minutes to restart
the clock.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Yes, I don't.  Okay.  I'm going to call
Ms. Gail Fischer next.
     MS. FISCHER:  Hi.  Can you hear me?
     MR. THOMMANA:  Yeah.
     MS. FISCHER:  Okay.  I'm Gail Fischer.  I own two
properties in Hillandale.  I just have a couple of points.
The first point is that I appreciate all the rounds of
hearings and how extensive your outreach has been.  My
second point is that the traffic at Powder Mill, New
Hampshire, and 495, and south on New Hampshire and North,
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     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Ms. Eileen
Finnegan.
     MS. FINNEGAN:  Hello.  Good evening.  I'm Eileen
Finnegan.  I live at 10404 Sweet Briar Parkway in Hillandale
and I've been active in both the Master Plan and the LATIP
for quite some time.
     The Department of Transportation has a difficult
choice in making a decision regarding the Duffie Companies
proposal for their desired improvements to benefit their
developments in the context of the LATIP.  DOT held two well
attended public participation presentations on the proposals
and heard strong opposition to the slip ramp.  The input at
these meetings should weigh heavily on DOT's decision-
making.
     DOT's responsibility is to carry out the goals of the
pay and go of the scheme initiated with the White Oak
Science Gateway Master Plan, while working toward full
implementation of the Plan.  As DOT is aware, the Plan was
approved as being out of balance with far more density than
anticipated improvements could manage.  New transit options
yet to be implemented are how – are intended to handle much
of the anticipated new density.
     But now is the first test of how DOT will manage this
situation.  By the old school, per project Band-Aid
approach, or by keeping to the LATIP directive to look long-
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it's a bigger ecosystem.  And my problem with what's going
on is – and my concern with the question before us is that
it is – it's separating a smaller portion of a bigger
problem and I'm unclear when the County is going to address
the bigger problems.
     I understand, for example, that the BRT is going to
take a portion of the traffic supposedly off New Hampshire.
But there's all these little piecemeal proposals of which I
perceive this to be one small piecemeal.  So that's my
biggest concern with the proposal.
     My third point, and second really big concern here, is
that the traffic that will run through the neighborhood,
it's unclear that there is a substantive insignificant
proposal to stop that traffic, that cut through traffic from
coming through.  Given the allure, if you will, that slip
ramp, the trade-off will then be heavier traffic through the
neighborhood in order to preserve transportation fluidity,
if you will.
     So the trade-off I don't feel are very fair.  And it's
not clear to me that the dynamics of that transportation
flow would be beneficial to the neighborhood or even that
there would be equal parity, everyone would benefit.  It
strikes me that in fact, the neighborhood would not benefit
and traffic – the commuters perhaps would, and the developer
would.  And that's it.


24
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


term at the whole, with prioritized and well considered
planning.
     The package the developer proposed LAT improvements
with the slip ramp should not be approved.  The harmful
impacts to the Hillandale Forest neighborhood have not been
addressed, while not fully considering the solutions for the
well-known New Hampshire Avenue capacity issues would be
shortsighted at this time.  I urge DOT to move swiftly an do
an independent Hillandale area LATIP study to resolve the
many issues which were never addressed in the original LATIP
study done in 2016/17.  Waiting for the LATIP redo in 2023
is a disservice to the Hillandale residents.  Use part of
the unencumbered 111,000 now in the LATIP, CIP – God, I love
it all.  The results of this effort should be a specific set
of recommendations to be substituted for the $5 million
placeholder currently being used for Hillandale.
     During DOT's – and my last point –
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.  Yeah.
     MS. FINNEGAN:  During DOT's informational briefing,
and tonight, promoting this LAT proposal, DOT staff has made
the point that if this package is not accepted nothing will
be done in Hillandale for a very long time.  This tactic has
fueled questions of the commitment that the County and DOT
has to a community which is traffic and transit challenged
and often feels treated like the poor stepchild to other
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areas within our County.  DOT has the responsibility to
evaluate forward fund projects that are needed in the
development as this proceeds forward.  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MS. FINNEGAN:  I have one copy, but I also intend to
email it too.  There are additional comments.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you. Next, we have Mr. Shane
Pollin.
     MR. POLLIN:  Good evening.  For the record, my name is
Shane Pollin.  I'm the Director of Development of the Duffie
Companies.  The Duffie Companies and family are owners and
managers of the Hillandale Shopping Center, 10,001 New
Hampshire Avenue, Capital Beltway Building 2, and the new
Home2 Suites all on Elton Road.  Our home office was located
on Elton Road for nearly 40 years.  We are also partners
with the Housing Opportunities Commission, working to
redevelop Holly Hall Apartments on the west side of New
Hampshire Avenue south of Powder Mill Road.
     The Duffie family has invested in and been responsible
for much of the development in Hillandale for nearly 60
years.  Needless to say, we are invested in and care about
our community.  Importantly, contrary to what some believe,
we are not here tonight because we need these improvements
to proceed with either our new hotel or Hillandale Gateway.
We do not need these improvements in order to develop our
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and delay, which is the very cause of the cut through that
they are reasonably fearing.  This said, we do not want to
do more harm than good.  And it is for that reason that we
have proposed traffic calming on Elton Road and recognize
the possible need for additional mitigation at the
intersection of Riggs and Wooded.
     Please do not let this opportunity to improve the
commutes of over 60,000 vehicles a day who use the troubled
intersection to pass us by.  And please adopt this
improvement package.  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Thank you.  Right on time.
Okay.  Next we have Mr. Mike Lenhart.
     MR. LENHART:  Good evening.  For the record, I'm
Michael Lenhart with Lenhart Traffic Consulting.  And I had
some other things I was going to say, but much of it was
already discussed.  So I'm going to address a few of the
comments that were raised.
     So the LATIP was a regional analysis of the White Oak
area.  As the Duffie Companies was going through the review
and approval of several projects in the area, that brought
us in and asked us to look at the LATIP and those findings.
And we found that there were several errors.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Can you get the mic closer.
     MR. LENHART:  There were several errors in the LATIP
analysis, specifically the – there was an omission of the
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newly completed hotel or Hillandale Gateway.
     We are here tonight – all of us are only here tonight
because the Duffie family cares more about actually making
improvements than simply paying fees.  As a member of the
Citizens Advisory Committee, I was an active participant in
the development of the vision of the Master Plan.
Addressing traffic congestion with important issue to all of
those involved in the master planning process.  LATIP is the
program that was adopted to address congestion and now is
the time to approve and LATIP package for Hillandale.  Now,
before we put additional trips on the road and now, before
we make payments that will go someplace else.
     While there is a lot of fear about the potential
unintended consequences, the proposed improvements, what I
have not heard is anyone question the potential
effectiveness of these improvements to reduce congestion.
Residents are understandably fearful of cut through traffic.
They are fearful because we on Elton Road and those on
Wooded Way have witnessed increasing cut through over the
years as more vehicles try to avoid the level of service F
congestion at the New Hampshire Avenue, Powder Mill
intersection.
     Ironically, those most concerned about the cut through
that exists today should be most supportive of these
improvements which are designed to address the congestion
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northbound U-turns, 650 at Powder Mill, to return back to
the ramp into southbound 650.  We conducted a new analysis
using the LATIP future 2040 traffic volumes, keeping the
data consistent, where we included the omitted U-turns.
That was reviewed and approved by State Highway
Administration and by DOT, showing that without additional
LATIP improvements, the intersection would not pass the
LATIP thresholds.
     And so at that time, we recommended improvements on
eastbound and westbound Powder Mill Road.  And we – that by
itself does not solve the projected failures at Powder Mill.
So we identified and recommended the slip ramp.  And in
doing so, that eliminate, as mentioned, the northbound
U-turns at Powder Mill.  And also pulls 15 to 20 percent of
the westbound left turn traffic off Powder Mill at 650 by
allowing the Hillandale shopping center to use Elton Road to
get to 650 and to the slip ramp and to south on 650.
     The slip ramp is not intended to be a regional
alternate to Powder Mill Road.  There is a need for local
traffic to have an option to get to the beltway or to get to
650 S. without having to be funneled through the Powder Mill
intersection.  Right now, anybody going south on 650 or
going to the outer loop is funneled through Powder Mill.
And by providing this alternate option for the local
traffic, it creates substantial improvements to the
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intersection.
     We believe that there are ways that neighborhood
traffic calming can be implemented.  As discussed, there are
a number of options.  Are any of them perfect?  Probably
not.  But they will improve the existing situation.  They
will help to address the proposed situation.  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Mr. Zachary
Marks with HOC.
     MR. MARKS:  Good evening.  Zach Marks with HOC.  HOC
is the owner of Holly Hall Apartments and we have been the
owner of Holly Hall Apartments for almost 50 years.  So
we've been in the community for long time.  And so we have
watched things change and we have watched many things not
change.  And we know very much that the East County has been
passed over for investment for very long time.
     So, you know, the Victory Crossing Senior Housing, new
community up at 650 and 29, is one of the first new
residential properties in the area.  And that is partly due
to Commission investment.  And throughout the White Oak
Science Gateway Master Plan process we have consistently
tried our best to create opportunities that, of course,
first further our mission, but also create an opportunity
for reinvestment, at long last, in the East County.
     And so from the perspective of our future residents,
who will be both a senior and multifamily families and
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move on and we don't make those traffic improvements, then a
few years from now nobody's going to remember this hearing.
All they are going to know is that HOC built something new
and the traffic got worse.  Thank you.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Mr. Eric
Price.
     MR. PRICE:  Good evening.  My name is Eric Price.  I'm
the CEO for HIT advisors.  I'm the consultant to the ATU
Technology and Education Center, which is an affiliate of
the Amalgamated Transit Union.  And with me also this
evening is Dan Smith, who is the Assistant General Counsel
at ATU, and representing the president of the ATU, Larry
Hanley.
     As you know, ATU Tech owns the 45-acre campus located
at 10,000 New Hampshire Avenue at the intersection of Powder
Mill Road.  The campus contains the Tommy Douglas Center and
related facilities together with the headquarters and
operations of the Amalgamated Transit Union.  In this
location, ATU Tech, is directly affected by traffic
conditions on New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road.  In
addition, ATU Tech is exploring opportunities to further
develop campus consistent with the White Oak Gateway – White
Oak Science Gateway Master Plan.
While there is no set timetable for such development,
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improved New Hampshire is of vital importance for everything
from getting to work to the future BRT, allowing it to flow
in a much better way that creates an actual second option
for transit, and also allows for, in particular, fire and
rescue.  It's pretty important to our senior communities
that will be both at the north end and the south end of 650
between 29 and 495.
     We also have made sure that, despite the fact that we
were – there is increased density, we have worked very hard
to make sure that we have the opportunity to invest now in
traffic improvements.  Again, we could simply write a check
and move on, but we have consistently worked very hard over
the past few years to make sure that we can do more than
that and simply invest in this intersection.  And frankly,
if something that improves an intersection that is so
vitally in need of it, if something can improve it like this
and we don't do it, then really what – what was the LATIP
for and what improvements could possibly work to begin to
cure that F rating?
     And lastly, as someone who wants to get up in front of
hearings and commissions and boards and councils and
everybody else and talk about why affordable housing
investment should occur in particular neighborhoods, it's
important that we don't create traffic problems; that we
solve traffic problems.  Because if we pay this fee and we
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if and when it occurs, it will likely affect and be affected
by multiple traffic conditions.  We have been briefed by the
Duffie Companies regarding the transportation improvements
that they are proposing be incorporated in the White Oak
Local Area Transportation Improvement Program.  The Duffie
Companies are developing properties on both sides of New
Hampshire Avenue, which is testified today, including Holly
Hall, an immediate abutter to the ATU Tech campus.
     We are appearing today in support of the LATIP
improvement package proposed by the Duffie Companies.  We
believe these specific improvements to be carried out by the
Duffie Companies as part of the LATIP are essential to
improving traffic conditions on New Hampshire Avenue at the
area continues to develop.
     The LATIP is a critical component in the
revitalization of the vision created by the White Oak
Science Gateway Master Plan.  We respectfully request that
the Montgomery County Department of Transportation adopt the
proposed LATIP improvements, specifically the widening of
Powder Mill Road west of New Hampshire Avenue to the
extension of the northbound right turn lane east of New
Hampshire Avenue, and three, the slip ramp along Elton Road
along with associated calming measures.  Thank you for your
consideration.
MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
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     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Next, we have Mr. Tim Kamas.
     MR. KAMAS:  Hello and thank you for letting me speak
tonight.  My name is Tim Kamas.  I live at 1232 Catherine
Road in Springbrook Manor and I work in Hillandale.  I
support the proposed LATIP improvements to make the Master
Plan work and ensure the LATIP dollars stay in East County.
I think that the package should be approved.
     I'm that person who moved to this neighborhood because
of the amenities and connectivity of the area.  These are
good things.  I don't want to drive 30 minutes to the
grocery store to fill a prescription or grab a bite to eat.
My children go to school at St. Luke's across from Mrs.
Kay's on the way downtown.  On occasion, I am picking them
up while I'm at work, so I'm popping out during lunch hour
and picking them up.  Every time I'm making this trip, even
though I know where I'm going, I type it into my GPS and I
add 15 minutes on because it's not uncommon that I'm having
to wait through one, two, sometimes three cycles at the
Powder Mill U-turn.
     When I was just waiting at Elton Road and staring at
where I want to go.  That I'm waiting through two or three
cycles means that there's another 20 or 30 cars ahead of me
that probably feels the same way.  They are not all here.
They may still be trying to get home from work.  I
understand the concerns about cut through traffic, but
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horrible that for us to go ahead and leave, of which the 50
percent of us have to head westbound on 495, we actually cut
through the residential neighborhood by going down Elton to
Wooded Way to Green Forest out to Powder Mill.
     And then we fight with the three lanes of left turning
traffic to try make it over to the westbound ramp.  The slip
ramp would solve a lot of those problems that – the 30 or so
of us that have to cut to that neighborhood would stop doing
it.  We would all – we used to have that, the pleasure of
having that slip ramp.  It was there for a temporary time,
probably 15 years ago.  And it's greatly missed.  Tim spoke
with the three cycles of lights.  That's just at the U-turn.
Sometimes it takes three cycles of lights just to get on to
New Hampshire Avenue northbound to be able to get there to
make that U-turn.
     The traffic calming devices on Elton Road would help
the employees in our company, as quite a few of them, on
nice days we walk up to the shopping center to get lunch.
And it would make it a lot easier to cross over Elton Road
because of the speeds that we have there.  Thank you very
much for your time.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Ms. Lillie
Brown.
MS. BROWN:  My name is Lillie Rashard (phonetic)
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that's coming from another County and will continue to come
from another County.  GPS applications know the fastest way
to get anywhere in real time.  You don't stop the bucket
from filling up by plugging a hole in the bucket.  You turn
off the water.  A one-way sign or a do not enter sign do
just that.  But from what I can tell, that the question for
Prince Georges County.
     Technical analysis is the key discussion point here.
A bunch of really smart people took a lot of time and used
facts, studies, and calculations to come up with these
plans.  Then a bunch of really smart people at DOT and SHA
analyzed them with facts and calculations.  And their
conclusion was that these plans work.  I very much
appreciate your time and any help you can provide in getting
me to my kids quicker and home in time for dinner.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.  Don't overestimate our
intelligence.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Next we have Les Powell.
     MR. POWELL:  For the record, my name is Les Powell
with the firm of Charles P. Johnson & Associates.  And I
worked at Charles P. Johnson & Associates for 34 years.  We
are located at 1751 Elton Road.  And there are approximately
anywhere from 60 to 75 people in our office, 50 percent of
which have found that the traffic at the intersections of
Elton Road, Powder Mill Road, the speed on Elton Road are so
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Brown.  I live at 2006 Forest Dale Drive.  I'm in the
Hillandale Forest section of Hillandale.  Our community is –
would be directly negatively impacted by the slip ramp.  We
already have a serious concern with cut through traffic and
speeders.  We have safety issues in our streets and we beg
you to look at what this will do to our community.  We are
concerned about safety on our neighborhood streets.
     I have heard talk about New Hampshire and Powder Mill
Road, traffic there.  But what about the residential
streets?  I haven't heard enough concern about what this
improvement will do to our community streets.  We have a
right to feel safe in our neighborhood.  And at this time,
we are not feeling safe with the cut through traffic, the
volume, and the speed, and the aggression.  When we are
backing out of our driveway or turning into the driveway,
they are aggressive drivers forcing us off – almost
literally forcing us off the street.
     And I feel like that the elected officials and the
staff have a responsibility for safety when you make
decisions.  Montgomery County currently is dealing with
fatalities on the streets.  So we are cautioning you not to
push the fatalities on our residential streets.  It's just a
matter of time with all of this traffic cutting through.
     There is talk about maybe making Riggs and Wooded Way
a one-way out of the neighborhood.  That would push the
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traffic to Forest Dale or Forest Hill.  So all we are doing
now is kicking the can down the street from one area to
another.  We would like to see a solution to the problem.
So as you move forward with the decision, please look at how
it's impacting the entire area.  I can understand what is
happening –
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.  Thirty seconds.
     MR. POWELL:  Thirty seconds – in the neighborhood and
in the shopping center.  But then there are – what about the
residential area?  We have a concern as well and it's
safety.  Thank you.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next we have Ms. Margie
Georgean-Rood.
     MS. GEORGEAN-ROOD:  Good evening.  My name is Margie
Georgean-Rood.  I am the president of the Hillandale
Citizens Association, and this is our statement from the
executive board.
     The Hillandale Citizens Association appreciates the
Duffie Companies investment in our community.  However, the
current White Oak LATIP proposal in the Hillandale community
specifically to install a slip ramp at the intersection of
New Hampshire Avenue, Elton Road, and the Capital Beltway is
not acceptable due to the safety issues it would cause a
long our adjacent residential streets.
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improvements needed in our area.  We encourage County
officials to fulfill the other promises of the LATIP, which
are coordination, equity, and transparency with a thorough –
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
     MS. GEORGEAN-ROOD:  -- independent evaluation of this
critical court order.  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next we have Margo B Hall.
Ms. Margo Hall.
     MS. HALL:  Good evening.  I'm Dr. Margo B. Hall.  I
reside at 10202 Green Forest Drive, Silver Spring, Maryland,
and I'm a resident of Hillandale Forest community.
     Just a few points that I would like to make.  I, as a
resident, would not encourage the development of the slip
ramp.  I recognize the problems that we have a traffic in
this area, as in many areas.  However, over the years that I
have been in the community, which are considerable, a number
of years, there has been no community engagement with all of
the stakeholders that would be affected by a slip ramp and
the additional engagement of transportation through a
community that have been designed many years ago and not for
the increased traffic there.
     The traffic studies that have been done have been
wonderful, but they have not included the internal community
through which these problems are attempting to be solved.
There is a need to understand what the residence of this
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     In particular, the slip ramp included in this proposal
will make cut through traffic in Hillandale Forest all the
more attractive.  This creates real pedestrian safety,
quality of life, and diminishing property value issues in
our community that must be considered in any plan moving
forward.
     The New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road
intersection is the only intersection from the 2016 LATIP
study without a plan in place for transportation
improvements promised by the LATIP process.  There are also
two adjacent areas that need to be included in any traffic
study to adequately address traffic and safety issues in
Hillandale.  These intersections, Powder Mill Road and Riggs
Road, and the portion of New Hampshire Avenue between the
Capital Beltway and Oak View Drive must be considered as
part of a truly comprehensive look at the traffic challenges
in this area.
     As much as we agree on the need to see improvements to
the traffic problems in Hillandale and appreciate the Duffie
Companies efforts to invest directly in the community, we do
not agree that the slip ramp is the right improvement.  The
proposed slip ramp will make cut through traffic in
Hillandale Forest, a current and long-standing safety issue,
even worse.  Our community requires a detailed traffic and
right-of-way study in order to holistically assess the
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densely populated small part of the community that is
bi-county be considered.  We pay taxes.  We are proud of our
community.  We are proud of its reputation.
     Now what happens with the slip ramp and whichever of
these solutions is proposed, is that it has a negative
impact on our quality, on the years of our life because of
safety concerns, and on school buses that have to go to the
community, on local issues like trash collection.  Currently
those streets are not designed to handle the frequency and
the weight of the traffic that comes through.  As it is, if
we park on both sides of the streets that are involved
throughway, barely can a single car go either up the hill on
Wooded Way to Elton Road or down the hill.
     Now with the inclusion of additional traffic, you're
going to interrupt people's property lines in order to
expand the streets to engage this additional traffic, one
way or both ways.  This is going to severely limit our
ability to have a walkable community, a friendly community.
And there is no value added, honestly, for the interior of
our community.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
     MS. HALL:  We want this to be a valuable, wonderful
place to live.  But this solution to the slip ramp as a
solution is not appropriate at this time.  Thank you.
MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.


Transcript of Public Hearing 10 (37 to 40)


Conducted on November 15, 2018


PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM







41
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


     MR. THOMMANA:  That was our last – do we have anybody
that signed up?
     MR. CONKLIN:  If anybody else would like to sign up at
this time, please do so.  See Gary and he can fill out a
card.  We have time.  We will get as many speakers in as we
can.
     MR. BOSSI:  First name is Clinton E. Scott Jr.
     MR. SCOTT:  Good evening.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening.
     MR. SCOTT:  I am Clinton E. Scott Jr.  I reside at
1779 Elton Road.  I've been a resident for 39 years.
     I can tell you with the first experience of the slip
ramp about 15 years ago, it had a very negative impact on
our community.  And by negative impact, I mean there were
significant safety issues.  You've heard some of these
safety issues voiced today.  There was also increased
traffic.  I know you've heard about cut through traffic, but
I want to reiterate that that is a very serious problem.
     I don't see a solution with this Beltway slip ramp.
It didn't solve the problem 15 years ago.  It aggravated the
problem.  And it's not the correct solution today.  I've
spoken continuously with fellow residents on Elton Road and
Wooded Way over 39 years.  No one is in favor of a Beltway
slip ramp.  So I'm here today – I've already submitted
written testimony – to once and for all, let's put this
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get onto that single entrance ramp.  They are coming up,
going under the beltway on New Hampshire and making U-turns
to go westbound.  So putting a slip ramp there, they're just
going to make that left turn there on the slip ramp
regardless of whether or not there is a no left turn sign or
not.
     The current traffic that has been counted as making a
U-turn there is not negligible, but it's well below the
sensitivity rating.  And I don't think that putting that –
putting the residents at risk there for the sake of a
negligible amount of U-turn traffic is going to solve the
problem.  Because what else is going to happen is that
people are going to use Riggs Road northbound to take the
Elton Way – Wooded Way, Elton onto the slip ramp to avoid
standing in traffic on northbound New Hampshire.
     Currently the traffic that is coming from College Park
is going to – taking Adelphi Road to New Hampshire, going up
and stacking up for several blocks trying to get onto that
single entrance.  And what they're going to do is once there
is a slip ramp there, they're going to come up Riggs Road
and go down to that neighborhood.
     The other thing that hasn't been taken into
consideration is the impact of the recently enacted or
activated traffic signal for the inbound or the outer –
excuse me – the inner loop traffic that's going southbound
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issue to rest.  Let's kill it and move on to a more
acceptable solution.  Thank you.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MR. BOSSI:  Steven Smith.
     MR. SMITH:  Good evening.  My name is Steven Smith and
I reside at 10201 Riggs Road in the immediate area.
     And I support the residents of Montgomery County right
across the street from me who are in opposition to the
proposed slip ramp.  I have no position on the other
proposed traffic projects.  I'm in opposition to the slip
ramp because of the increased traffic it will bring onto
Riggs Road, bring onto Elton, and Wooded Way.  There is a
lot of traffic authority diverting onto those thoroughfares.
     And I support a broader area of investigation rather
than letting the beltway be the cutoff point for the transit
analysis.  Actually, I would go down past Oak View to
Adelphi because a lot of the traffic problems at the Powder
Mill and Beltway area result from northbound traffic that's
trying to enter the Beltway.  There is a single entrance
ramp for both eastbound and westbound traffic.
     Putting a slip ramp – and a lot of the turnaround
traffic, the U-turn traffic at Powder Mill northbound off of
New Hampshire to get onto the westbound, it's people who are
avoiding the backup on northbound New Hampshire trying to
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on to New Hampshire.  That is not backing up traffic on
southbound New Hampshire and these people are aggravated at
Elton –
     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Your time is up so I'm going to
have to –
     MR. SMITH:  Okay.
     MR. THOMMANA:  And you do have written testimony.
     MR. SMITH:  They get at Elton and they are now coming
up Elton to go down New Hampshire or go down Riggs Road.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MR. SMITH:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  If there's anybody else?
     MR. BOSSI:  We have three, maybe four more.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.
     MR. BOSSI:  Jeff McNeil.
     MR. MCNEIL:  Hello.  Jeff McNeil, Hillandale resident.
I would like to take a second to say that I'm mere days away
from my masters in real estate development from the
University of Maryland.  While I've been there I've studied
under Professor extraordinaire, Zach Marks.  Love that guy.
     MR. CONKLIN:  When are finals?  Just kidding.
     MR. MARKS:  You're just --
     MR. CONKLIN:  We will give you five extra seconds.
MR. MARKS:  -- working on your grade?
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     MR. MCNEIL:  Yeah.  A mere weeks away.  I'm here as a
resident to say I have no doubt that the studies that have
shown the slip ramp will take trips out of the intersection
and help the traffic in there.  I'm concerned though that
the slip ramp will also make the cut through traffic worse.
And I don't believe that we've identified the right
combination of traffic calming measures to fully protect
that part of the neighborhood.
     I would like to acknowledge that we have met with
Montgomery County DOT and some of the things that they have
proposed, I think that they are positive.  But I don't think
we've identified it fully yet.  So I hope that we can come
to a conclusion on those before we move forward.  But until
we do that, it's hard, from a resident perspective, to
support putting the slip ramp in.  Okay.  That's all.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MR. BOSSI:  We have two more.  Richard Hayne.
     MR. HAYNE:  Yeah.  My name is Richard Hayne.  I live
at 2007 Wooded Way on the curve.  And I did send some
comments in and I copied some local people in the community
and Eileen was kind enough to answer many of the questions
for me, that I had posed.
     I'm here to speak – I'm glad that there are
improvements in the community.  I have no negative animus
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It's more important than waiting for a little longer in
traffic, which everybody does in urban areas.  I'm glad
you're trying to reduce it, but you're going to increase
accidents.  And I don't know how you can be held responsible
for that, but I wish there was a way to be held accountable
for decisions that harm human bodies and cause --
     MR. THOMMANA:   Thirty seconds.
     MR. HAYNES:  -- tens of thousands of dollars of
property damage and damage to cars. I mean, local property
and damaged cars.  I do not understand the urgency of doing
this and I ask you to wait until you have a clear plan that
will reduce the traffic and eliminate the slip ramp.  Thank
you.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.
     MR. BOSSI:  The last person on the list is Gary Perry,
Sr.
     MR. PERRY:  Hi, good afternoon.
     MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening.
     MR. PERRY:  Good evening, yeah.  I want to reiterate
the gentleman there.  I think he pretty much put it in a
nutshell.  I live in Hillandale Forest also.  And safety,
like Ms. Brown said, safety would be a primary concern.  But
also, you know, I tried to get a full visual of how this is
going to be.  I hope it's not a foregone conclusion and this
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towards the Duffie Company or – in fact, I think of you most
of those improvements positively.  And I'm glad that you are
doing the transportation studies in working on this.  This
is important to our community.  But I do oppose the slip
ramp.
     I've lived in Chicago, Houston, Columbus, Ohio,
Detroit.  I've driven in Jakarta, London, Paris.  There's
going to be congestion in big cities, okay?  And I don't
like it, but what I want to talk about is accidents,
accidents on Wooded Way.  There were approximately five
accidents on Wooded Way, the upper half of Wooded Way, in
the first six months of this year.  I want to talk about
human bodies that are hauled off in ambulances.
     I want to talk about property that is damaged,
people's front yard, trees are knocked – small trees,
obviously, are knocked down.  I want to talk about the car
that goes into a telephone pole and you rush out there
because we hear the accident, you know?  We are right there.
And we rush out.  And this was not this year.  And this
woman was screaming because the woman in the passenger seat
is comatose.  I don't know if she lived.  I don't know if
she died.  You know, the ambulance comes, and I don't get in
their way.
     That, to me, is really important stuff there.  You
know, it's more important than convenience, inconvenience.
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is just a formality.  I just want to say that.
     But I try to get a visual how this actually will work
out.  And I also give people talking about convenience, but
we have a lot at stake here in this community.  We already
have traffic of tractor-trailers coming through and many
accidents, like the gentleman said.
     But I want to put emphasis on, once the word gets out
that this slip ramp is there, it's definite, without a
doubt, there will be excessive traffic coming through
Wooded, coming through Forest Dale, coming through Forest
Hill.  It's – and I heard the gentleman back there talk
about kids, picking his kids – that's a great thing.  But we
have kids living in the neighborhood.  We have young kids
riding bikes.  It's just a regular neighborhood.
     Now, when this traffic becomes congested, which it
will, let's not fool ourselves.  It sounds like we trying to
flower this up, or paint this as something it's not.  It
will be congested.  And as a stakeholder in this community,
not only the safety, but our property values, like I heard a
couple of residents say, our property values will plummet.
     So I'm trying to weigh between the convenience and the
skin in the game and it just doesn't weigh out.  In my
opinion, it doesn't weigh out.  So I just wanted to just add
that.  Thank you.
MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
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     MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Nobody else?  Okay.  Well,
we've gone through all the testimonies.  Thank you everybody
for coming out.  If --
     MR. CONKLIN:  I would just like to thank everybody for
their thoughtful and polite comments and we look forward to
sort of collecting all of this, digesting all the
information before us in making a decision.  I don't have a
specific timeline on that, but we will be sure to
communicate whatever decision is reached when that occurs.
We have a few more minutes.  If there are any specific
questions, we can answer them at the displays in the back.
Thank you again.
     (Off the record at 8:12 p.m.)
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          1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

          2       MR. THOMMANA:  All right.  Good evening, everybody.

          3  We are going to go ahead and get started.  If you could

          4  please take a seat.

          5       Good evening.  Today is Thursday, November 15, 2018.

          6  The time is approximately 7:05 p.m.   We are assembled in

          7  the White Oak Community Rec Center located at 1700 April

          8  Lane in Silver Spring, Maryland.  I am Jose Thommana, the

          9  Designee of the Director of the Montgomery County Department

         10  of Transportation, to conduct this public hearing.

         11       Here with me today is Mr. Chris Conklin, Deputy

         12  Director of the Department of Transportation, who will

         13  provide information on this project.

         14       The White Oak Local Area and the transportation

         15  Improvement Program was established by County Council to

         16  fund projects needed within the White Oak Science Gateway

         17  Master Plan Area so that the requirements of the County

         18  subdivision staging policy can be met.  Property owners who

         19  develop or redevelop the property within the planned area

         20  must pay a promotional fee towards transportation

         21  improvements in the program based on the amount and use of

         22  their proposed implement.  The fees paid into this program

         23  are reserved for implementation of projects within the

         24  program.

         25  Alternatively, property owners may construct
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          1  improvements within the program and receive credit towards

          2  the fees that would otherwise need to pay.  These

          3  requirements are in addition to the transportation impact

          4  packs established under County code.

          5       The White Oak local area transportation improvement

          6  projects include $5 million for undesignated improvements at

          7  the intersection of Maryland Route 650, also known as New

          8  Hampshire Avenue at Powder Mill Road.  This hearing is on

          9  the replacement of the unspecified improvements with

         10  proposed improvements at the intersection of Maryland Route

         11  650 at Powder Mill Road, at the intersection of Maryland

         12  Route 650 at Elton Road, and at the Interstate 495 westbound

         13  on ramp.  The construction of queue jump lane and a new bus

         14  stop on Maryland Route 650 southbound near Elton Road, and

         15  construction of modifications to Elton Road between Maryland

         16  Route 650 and the Prince Georges County line.

         17       The proposed improvements are depicted graphically on

         18  displays in the hearing room.  The post improvements have

         19  been designated by the – have been designed by the -- Duffie

         20  Companies in association with their Batel (phonetic)

         21  development project on Elton Road and their proposed

         22  development of the Hillandale Gateway on the west side of

         23  Maryland 650.

         24       Both the Montgomery County Department of

         25  Transportation and the Maryland State Highway Administration
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          1  have reviewed the proposed improvements for technical

          2  adequacy, but neither agency has approved construction of

          3  these improvements at this time.

          4       The Montgomery County Department of Transportation has

          5  found that the proposed improvements meet the requirements

          6  of the local area transportation improvement program and has

          7  solicited public input regarding implementation of the

          8  proposed improvements through a general public meeting on

          9  May 24th, meetings with representatives of the Hillandale

         10  Civic Association on October 1, a meeting with the Prince

         11  Georges County Department of Public Works and Transportation

         12  on October 15, a meeting with the Friends of White Oak on

         13  October 23rd, a public meeting hosted by and held in Prince

         14  Georges County on October 24, a meeting on the East County

         15  Citizens Advisory Board on November 7th, and public open

         16  house held in this facility on November 8th.

         17       This hearing is being conducted to formally solicit

         18  input to advise the Director of the Department of

         19  Transportation as required in Chapter 49, Section 53, of the

         20  county code whether to replace unspecified improvements at

         21  the intersection of Maryland 650 and Powder Mill Road with

         22  the proposed improvements.  Both spoken and written input

         23  received through this hearing, in combination with the

         24  technical analysis of the proposed improvements, will form

         25  the basis of the hearing examiner's recommendation to the
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          1  director.

          2       This hearing follows advertisement hearing in the

          3  Washington Post on October 31, and November 7, 2018, and

          4  publications with numerous other official and unofficial

          5  channels.  The hearing record will be open – will be held

          6  open for written comment until 7:30 a.m. on Monday, November

          7  25, 2018.  All testimony must be received by this time.

          8  Late testimony will not be considered.

          9       Following the presentation of the proposed

         10  improvements by Chris Conklin on behalf of the Department of

         11  Transportation, each speaker will have three minutes to

         12  speak.  If you have written comments with you, you may

         13  provide those to me as well as for inclusion into the

         14  record.  Sign up for those wishing to testify has been

         15  conducted over the last two weeks and those speakers will be

         16  called upon first.  However, time has been reserved for

         17  additional speakers who did not sign up in advance.  Anyone

         18  not already on the speaker list who wishes to speak, please

         19  fill out an index card with your name and provide it to a

         20  MCDOT representative.  I will select speakers at random from

         21  the cards we receive at the time remaining in this hearing.

         22       As mentioned, the record will be held open for

         23  additional comment until 7:30 a.m. on Monday, November 25,

         24  2018, so that anyone who cannot complete testimony within

         25  the allotted three minutes may submit comments in written,
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          1  as noted.  Comments can be sent to Ms. Stacy Leach,

          2  Executive Administrative Aid, Montgomery County Department

          3  of Transportation, 10th Floor, 101 Monroe Street, Rockville,

          4  Maryland 20850; or maybe sent via email to

          5  Stacey.Leach@MontgomeryCountyMD.gov.

          6       Unless it concludes earlier, this hearing will end

          7  promptly at 8:50 p.m. due to the buildings operating hours.

          8  I will advise each speaker when they have 30 seconds

          9  remaining and will strictly limit each speaker to three

         10  minutes of testimony.  I also ask that each speaker identify

         11  themselves by name and address or affiliation, if any, at

         12  the beginning of their remarks.  With that, I will hand it

         13  over to Chris.

         14       MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening everybody.  Thank you for

         15  coming out once again to participate in this process.  We do

         16  recognize the weather is not the best, but we know many of

         17  you made arrangements to be here today and did not want to

         18  inconvenience you on another date.  That is part of the

         19  reason we have extended the comment deadline to the extent

         20  that we have.  We also recognize the holiday is coming up

         21  and many people have other obligations.  And as a courtesy,

         22  we are giving you the maximum amount of time we can, knowing

         23  that we will also be in and out of the office over that

         24  period and unlikely to digest your comments while we are

         25  digesting Thanksgiving.  So thank you once again.
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          1       My name is Chris Conklin and I'm the Deputy Director

          2  for Policy for the Montgomery County Department of

          3  Transportation.  Tonight I will briefly summarize the

          4  proposal for improvement in the Hillandale neighborhood that

          5  was substitute for the placeholder improvements in the White

          6  Oak Local Area Transportation Improvement Program.  In

          7  addition to this testimony, supporting technical analysis

          8  developed by Lenhart Associates that has been reviewed by

          9  and accepted by the Department of Transportation will be

         10  included in the record of this public hearing.

         11       The analysis performed by the Duffie Companies assumed

         12  a build out year of 2040 and 100 percent of the Master Plan

         13  buildout which keeps with the methodology established for

         14  the local area transportation improvement program.  It then

         15  added its own site generated trips for the Hillandale

         16  Gateway project.  And while this is technically sound, it

         17  double counts the trips generated by the project.  By this,

         18  it ensures that the trips that are applied at a more

         19  specific level of detail than the areawide models and is a

         20  conservative representation of the analysis.

         21       The analysis did not assume any traffic currently

         22  originating from the Hillandale shopping center would change

         23  its behavior.  Traffic exiting the shopping center on to

         24  Powder Mill Road will continue to use Powder Mill Road.  The

         25  traffic exiting onto Elton Road would continue to use Elton
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          1  Road.  Since the original submittal, Lenhart Associates has

          2  submitted supplemental analysis that does reassign shopping

          3  center traffic.  This additional analysis is currently under

          4  review by the Department.

          5       As previously noted, this analysis has been reviewed

          6  by MCDOT as well as SHA, and both agencies find that the

          7  evaluation and its findings are technically sound.  The

          8  proposed treatments meet the technical criteria established

          9  for the area, which establishes a limit of 80 seconds of

         10  overall intersection delay.  The proposed improvements are

         11  illustrated on display boards in the hearing room and have

         12  been available for public review on many occasions, as

         13  described in the hearing examiner's introduction.

         14       The proposed improvements include four distinct

         15  components, including two treatments at the intersection of

         16  New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road, a slip ramp and

         17  queue jump at New Hampshire Avenue and Elton Road and

         18  traffic holding along Elton Road.  Along westbound Powder

         19  Milk Road, a right turn lane that is relatively short and

         20  often blocked by queue -- blocked by queued left and through

         21  vehicles.  The proposal is to extend this right turn lane by

         22  over 200 feet to improve its accessibility for right turning

         23  motorists.

         24       Along eastbound Powder Mill Road approach to New

         25  Hampshire Avenue, the proposal is to widen and add an
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          1  additional lane approaching the intersection.  This widening

          2  directly serves the growth anticipated by the redevelopment

          3  of the Hillandale Gateway site.

          4       The new slip ramp is proposed as a west leg to the

          5  intersection of New Hampshire Avenue and Elton Road.  This

          6  ramp would provide one way through accessible westbound

          7  Elton Road directly to the outer loop of the Capital

          8  Beltway.  This is focused primarily on relieving traffic

          9  that today generally travels through the Powder Mill Road

         10  intersection to travel between Elton Road and the beltway.

         11       Included in this slip ramp design is a reconstruction

         12  of the southbound bus stop.  The design proposes to include

         13  a queue jump lane whereby buses may exit the southbound flow

         14  of traffic.  To serve the bus stop it would receive an

         15  advance green signal to allow them to merge back into

         16  traffic at that location.

         17       Acknowledging commuter concerns regarding cut through

         18  traffic along Elton Road, traffic holding along the road,

         19  which would be implemented prior to, or concurrent with a

         20  slip ramp.  These measures include a mixture of horizontal

         21  and vertical deflection utilizing speed tables, raised

         22  crosswalks, neck downs, and islands to meter speeds through

         23  the Montgomery County portion of Elton Road.

         24       Unrelated to this analysis and its proposed

         25  treatments, the Prince Georges County Department of Public
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          1  Works and Transportation recently installed speed humps

          2  along their respective portion of Elton Road.

          3       As previously noted, the delay thresholds for the area

          4  were established by the LATIP at 80 seconds of intersection

          5  delay.  By the year 2040, without any intersection

          6  treatments, the intersections of New Hampshire Avenue and

          7  Powder Mill Road will fail to meet this criteria in the

          8  evening and will nearly fail in the morning.  The proposal

          9  is forecast to result in acceptable traffic operation in the

         10  year 2040 for both the morning and evening periods.

         11       The proposed treatments at Powder Mill Road and Elton

         12  Road will reduce delay at the Powder Mill Road intersection

         13  by 27 percent in the morning and 39 percent in the evening.

         14  At Elton Road delays would be reduced by 10 percent in the

         15  morning and 24 percent in the evening.  This is accomplished

         16  primarily by enabling traffic on Elton to proceed directly

         17  onto the Beltway instead of using the most common route of

         18  turning right onto New Hampshire Avenue, U-turning at Powder

         19  Mill Road and returning as a right turn onto the existing

         20  Beltway ramp.

         21       The analysis assumes know the traffic currently using

         22  the Hillandale shopping center on to Powder Mill Road will

         23  divert to Elton Road to use that slip ramp.  However,

         24  observations have found that 20 percent of the traffic along

         25  westbound Powder Mill Road consists of traffic exiting the
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          1  shopping center.  If most of this traffic is assumed to exit

          2  the shopping center on to Elton Road, then compared to the

          3  (inaudible) baseline delays and New Hampshire Avenue and

          4  Powder Mill Road would be reduced by 40 percent in the

          5  morning and 43 percent in the evening.  There would be

          6  minimal effects the operations at the Elton Road

          7  intersection.

          8       The top concern heard from stakeholders relates to cut

          9  through traffic between Riggs Road and New Hampshire Avenue,

         10  primarily using a route formed by Elton Road and Wooded Way.

         11  Concerns are primarily focused on traffic headed westbound.

         12  From northbound Riggs Road in particular, the Elton/Wooded

         13  Way root is an attractive and direct alternative compared to

         14  waiting through congestion at the intersection of Powder

         15  Mill Road and Riggs Road.  The traffic calming proposed by

         16  the applicant and developed in coordination with the

         17  department is intended to simultaneously reduce speeds while

         18  also discouraging this cut through traffic.

         19       It is intended that a combination with Prince Georges

         20  County speed humps that the reduced speeds may reduce the

         21  attraction of using this route as a cut through.  Additional

         22  traffic calming alternatives have been shared with the

         23  community including restricting Elton Road or Wooded Way to

         24  one way eastbound, which is reliant upon Prince Georges

         25  County's implementation.  The restriction could also be
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          1  accomplished through signing only, restricting right or left

          2  turns from Riggs Road, either all day or by time of day.

          3  Both restrictions would be expected to significantly reduce

          4  cut through traffic, but also affect neighborhood access.

          5       However, restriction on Elton Road would also limit

          6  the neighborhoods access to either New Hampshire Avenue or

          7  to New Hampshire Avenue directly.  Additional concerns were

          8  raised by the community in response to these traffic calming

          9  options, particularly the risk of shifting cut through

         10  traffic to other streets as Forest Dale Drive and Forest

         11  Hill Drive.

         12       The input at this public hearing is ultimately going

         13  to help determine if the proposal is implemented in whole or

         14  in part.  If improved for implementation, the Duffie

         15  Companies would enter into agreement with the Department of

         16  Transportation and also the State Highway Administration to

         17  implement the identified projects.  The estimated cost of

         18  these projects would be approved and credited towards their

         19  White Oak Local Area Transportation Improvement Program fees

         20  and also potentially towards their impact tax.  Any

         21  additional fee or tax owed would be paid to the County.

         22       If the proposed improvements are not substituted, the

         23  County would accept full payment of the local area

         24  transportation improvement fee and impact tax and

         25  development would proceed without any immediate




�
                                                                        18



          1  infrastructure development other than is necessary for

          2  immediate site access.  Analysis and design of alternative

          3  treatments for the Hillandale area would occur as part of

          4  the regular local area transportation improvement schedule.

          5       At this time, the Tech Road, Industrial Road area is

          6  the highest priority in the local area transportation

          7  improvement program, and is scheduled for study by fiscal

          8  year 2023, which is the year 2023 to 2024.  Our fiscal years

          9  vary from the calendar years by six months.  It is therefore

         10  unlikely that without additional council action that

         11  analysis and design of Hillandale will not occur until after

         12  2023.

         13       We are now seeking any additional input the public

         14  would like to provide.  And with that, I will turn it back

         15  to Jose who will begin recording testimony.

         16       MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  And I apologize in advance if I

         17  pronounce somebody's name wrong.  So I'm going to go ahead

         18  and start calling each of the speakers up here.  And like I

         19  said before, each speaker will get three minutes.  And when

         20  you are about 30 seconds off, I will sign it and let you

         21  know that you have about 30 seconds left so that you know

         22  your time is coming up.

         23       So the first person we have is Dan Wilhelm, Greater

         24  Colesville Citizens Association.

         25  MR. WILHELM:  What mic do I use?
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          1       MR. THOMMANA:  Just the one in the center.

          2       MR. CONKLIN:  That one is probably not turned on.

          3       MR. WILHELM:  On top?

          4       MR. THOMMANA:  Yeah, there you go.

          5       MR. WILHELM:  Okay.  You have – you have my testimony.

          6  For the record, I'm Dan Wilhelm, president of the Greater

          7  Colesville Citizens Association.  We are a 3500 households a

          8  couple of miles north of here on New Hampshire Avenue.

          9       Accordingly, a lot of our people travel south of New

         10  Hampshire and go through the subject intersection of Powder

         11  Mill and New Hampshire Avenue.  We support the four proposed

         12  improvements that Chris just talked about.  We also support

         13  the removal of the northbound New Hampshire Avenue bus stop

         14  at the intersection with Powder Mill.  The improvements are

         15  talked about in the White Oak Master Plan, the White Oak

         16  Science Gateway Master Plan, and as Chris mentioned, the

         17  LATIP.

         18       These plans have been approved by the Council after

         19  extensive public hearings.  As a result, there is no – there

         20  is every reason to approve these improvements.  They are

         21  just the first set of improvements that would be addressed

         22  on build date needs in Hillandale.  And we support the two

         23  sets of improvements at Powder Mill.  We support the slip

         24  ramp at Elton.  Today there is no convenient way to – for

         25  vehicles coming from the shopping center from businesses on
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          1  Elton or from the residences to access the Beltway

          2  westbound.

          3       There are three roundabout ways for using this.

          4  First, drivers use the shopping center, or they can use the

          5  residential area to access Powder Mill Road, so they can

          6  turn left onto New Hampshire Avenue at the Powder Mill.

          7  This traffic study showed that over 15 percent of vehicles

          8  on Powder Mill fall under this category and therefore are a

          9  major contributor to congestion.

         10       The second way is for drivers to exit Elton Road onto

         11  northbound New Hampshire Avenue and do the U-turn.  This

         12  method adds vehicles to the subject intersection.  So it

         13  reduces capacity for other drivers.  The third way is the

         14  exit south onto New Hampshire Avenue, go down to Oak View,

         15  do a U-turn, and come back onto the ramp that way.

         16       The slip ramp provides a direct way to access the

         17  Beltway and reduces congestion at the subject intersection.

         18  It also provide – improves safety on Powder Mill and reduces

         19  congestion on New Hampshire Avenue at Oak View.

         20       The citizens along Elton Road and Wooded Way in Prince

         21  Georges County have long-standing concern about what they

         22  call cut through traffic.  We have heard the residents say

         23  the issue is speeding and resulting accidents.  Prince

         24  Georges County recently installed speed humps at –

         25  MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.
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          1       MR. WILHELM:  I'm through?

          2       MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.

          3       MR. WILHELM:  Thirty seconds.  The proposal here is to

          4  provide a race crosswalk and features, as Chris mentioned,

          5  to reduce the amount of vehicles.  The Hillandale

          6  Association in its January 17, 2017 testimony to the Council

          7  on the LATIP project indicated the congestion on Powder Mill

          8  and Riggs Road as part of the reason for the cut the traffic

          9  on Elton and Wooded Way.  GCC agrees with this assessment

         10  and the same logic applies to the subject intersection.  You

         11  have the rest of my testimony.

         12       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Thank you, Dan for your

         13  testimony.

         14       MR. CONKLIN:  He doesn't have three minutes to restart

         15  the clock.

         16       MR. THOMMANA:  Yes, I don't.  Okay.  I'm going to call

         17  Ms. Gail Fischer next.

         18       MS. FISCHER:  Hi.  Can you hear me?

         19       MR. THOMMANA:  Yeah.

         20       MS. FISCHER:  Okay.  I'm Gail Fischer.  I own two

         21  properties in Hillandale.  I just have a couple of points.

         22  The first point is that I appreciate all the rounds of

         23  hearings and how extensive your outreach has been.  My

         24  second point is that the traffic at Powder Mill, New

         25  Hampshire, and 495, and south on New Hampshire and North,
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          1  it's a bigger ecosystem.  And my problem with what's going

          2  on is – and my concern with the question before us is that

          3  it is – it's separating a smaller portion of a bigger

          4  problem and I'm unclear when the County is going to address

          5  the bigger problems.

          6       I understand, for example, that the BRT is going to

          7  take a portion of the traffic supposedly off New Hampshire.

          8  But there's all these little piecemeal proposals of which I

          9  perceive this to be one small piecemeal.  So that's my

         10  biggest concern with the proposal.

         11       My third point, and second really big concern here, is

         12  that the traffic that will run through the neighborhood,

         13  it's unclear that there is a substantive insignificant

         14  proposal to stop that traffic, that cut through traffic from

         15  coming through.  Given the allure, if you will, that slip

         16  ramp, the trade-off will then be heavier traffic through the

         17  neighborhood in order to preserve transportation fluidity,

         18  if you will.

         19       So the trade-off I don't feel are very fair.  And it's

         20  not clear to me that the dynamics of that transportation

         21  flow would be beneficial to the neighborhood or even that

         22  there would be equal parity, everyone would benefit.  It

         23  strikes me that in fact, the neighborhood would not benefit

         24  and traffic – the commuters perhaps would, and the developer

         25  would.  And that's it.




�
                                                                        23



          1       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Ms. Eileen

          2  Finnegan.

          3       MS. FINNEGAN:  Hello.  Good evening.  I'm Eileen

          4  Finnegan.  I live at 10404 Sweet Briar Parkway in Hillandale

          5  and I've been active in both the Master Plan and the LATIP

          6  for quite some time.

          7       The Department of Transportation has a difficult

          8  choice in making a decision regarding the Duffie Companies

          9  proposal for their desired improvements to benefit their

         10  developments in the context of the LATIP.  DOT held two well

         11  attended public participation presentations on the proposals

         12  and heard strong opposition to the slip ramp.  The input at

         13  these meetings should weigh heavily on DOT's decision-

         14  making.

         15       DOT's responsibility is to carry out the goals of the

         16  pay and go of the scheme initiated with the White Oak

         17  Science Gateway Master Plan, while working toward full

         18  implementation of the Plan.  As DOT is aware, the Plan was

         19  approved as being out of balance with far more density than

         20  anticipated improvements could manage.  New transit options

         21  yet to be implemented are how – are intended to handle much

         22  of the anticipated new density.

         23       But now is the first test of how DOT will manage this

         24  situation.  By the old school, per project Band-Aid

         25  approach, or by keeping to the LATIP directive to look long-
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          1  term at the whole, with prioritized and well considered

          2  planning.

          3       The package the developer proposed LAT improvements

          4  with the slip ramp should not be approved.  The harmful

          5  impacts to the Hillandale Forest neighborhood have not been

          6  addressed, while not fully considering the solutions for the

          7  well-known New Hampshire Avenue capacity issues would be

          8  shortsighted at this time.  I urge DOT to move swiftly an do

          9  an independent Hillandale area LATIP study to resolve the

         10  many issues which were never addressed in the original LATIP

         11  study done in 2016/17.  Waiting for the LATIP redo in 2023

         12  is a disservice to the Hillandale residents.  Use part of

         13  the unencumbered 111,000 now in the LATIP, CIP – God, I love

         14  it all.  The results of this effort should be a specific set

         15  of recommendations to be substituted for the $5 million

         16  placeholder currently being used for Hillandale.

         17       During DOT's – and my last point –

         18       MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.  Yeah.

         19       MS. FINNEGAN:  During DOT's informational briefing,

         20  and tonight, promoting this LAT proposal, DOT staff has made

         21  the point that if this package is not accepted nothing will

         22  be done in Hillandale for a very long time.  This tactic has

         23  fueled questions of the commitment that the County and DOT

         24  has to a community which is traffic and transit challenged

         25  and often feels treated like the poor stepchild to other
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          1  areas within our County.  DOT has the responsibility to

          2  evaluate forward fund projects that are needed in the

          3  development as this proceeds forward.  Thank you.

          4       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.

          5       MS. FINNEGAN:  I have one copy, but I also intend to

          6  email it too.  There are additional comments.

          7       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you. Next, we have Mr. Shane

          8  Pollin.

          9       MR. POLLIN:  Good evening.  For the record, my name is

         10  Shane Pollin.  I'm the Director of Development of the Duffie

         11  Companies.  The Duffie Companies and family are owners and

         12  managers of the Hillandale Shopping Center, 10,001 New

         13  Hampshire Avenue, Capital Beltway Building 2, and the new

         14  Home2 Suites all on Elton Road.  Our home office was located

         15  on Elton Road for nearly 40 years.  We are also partners

         16  with the Housing Opportunities Commission, working to

         17  redevelop Holly Hall Apartments on the west side of New

         18  Hampshire Avenue south of Powder Mill Road.

         19       The Duffie family has invested in and been responsible

         20  for much of the development in Hillandale for nearly 60

         21  years.  Needless to say, we are invested in and care about

         22  our community.  Importantly, contrary to what some believe,

         23  we are not here tonight because we need these improvements

         24  to proceed with either our new hotel or Hillandale Gateway.

         25  We do not need these improvements in order to develop our
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          1  newly completed hotel or Hillandale Gateway.

          2       We are here tonight – all of us are only here tonight

          3  because the Duffie family cares more about actually making

          4  improvements than simply paying fees.  As a member of the

          5  Citizens Advisory Committee, I was an active participant in

          6  the development of the vision of the Master Plan.

          7  Addressing traffic congestion with important issue to all of

          8  those involved in the master planning process.  LATIP is the

          9  program that was adopted to address congestion and now is

         10  the time to approve and LATIP package for Hillandale.  Now,

         11  before we put additional trips on the road and now, before

         12  we make payments that will go someplace else.

         13       While there is a lot of fear about the potential

         14  unintended consequences, the proposed improvements, what I

         15  have not heard is anyone question the potential

         16  effectiveness of these improvements to reduce congestion.

         17  Residents are understandably fearful of cut through traffic.

         18  They are fearful because we on Elton Road and those on

         19  Wooded Way have witnessed increasing cut through over the

         20  years as more vehicles try to avoid the level of service F

         21  congestion at the New Hampshire Avenue, Powder Mill

         22  intersection.

         23       Ironically, those most concerned about the cut through

         24  that exists today should be most supportive of these

         25  improvements which are designed to address the congestion
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          1  and delay, which is the very cause of the cut through that

          2  they are reasonably fearing.  This said, we do not want to

          3  do more harm than good.  And it is for that reason that we

          4  have proposed traffic calming on Elton Road and recognize

          5  the possible need for additional mitigation at the

          6  intersection of Riggs and Wooded.

          7       Please do not let this opportunity to improve the

          8  commutes of over 60,000 vehicles a day who use the troubled

          9  intersection to pass us by.  And please adopt this

         10  improvement package.  Thank you.

         11       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Thank you.  Right on time.

         12  Okay.  Next we have Mr. Mike Lenhart.

         13       MR. LENHART:  Good evening.  For the record, I'm

         14  Michael Lenhart with Lenhart Traffic Consulting.  And I had

         15  some other things I was going to say, but much of it was

         16  already discussed.  So I'm going to address a few of the

         17  comments that were raised.

         18       So the LATIP was a regional analysis of the White Oak

         19  area.  As the Duffie Companies was going through the review

         20  and approval of several projects in the area, that brought

         21  us in and asked us to look at the LATIP and those findings.

         22  And we found that there were several errors.

         23       MR. THOMMANA:  Can you get the mic closer.

         24       MR. LENHART:  There were several errors in the LATIP

         25  analysis, specifically the – there was an omission of the
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          1  northbound U-turns, 650 at Powder Mill, to return back to

          2  the ramp into southbound 650.  We conducted a new analysis

          3  using the LATIP future 2040 traffic volumes, keeping the

          4  data consistent, where we included the omitted U-turns.

          5  That was reviewed and approved by State Highway

          6  Administration and by DOT, showing that without additional

          7  LATIP improvements, the intersection would not pass the

          8  LATIP thresholds.

          9       And so at that time, we recommended improvements on

         10  eastbound and westbound Powder Mill Road.  And we – that by

         11  itself does not solve the projected failures at Powder Mill.

         12  So we identified and recommended the slip ramp.  And in

         13  doing so, that eliminate, as mentioned, the northbound

         14  U-turns at Powder Mill.  And also pulls 15 to 20 percent of

         15  the westbound left turn traffic off Powder Mill at 650 by

         16  allowing the Hillandale shopping center to use Elton Road to

         17  get to 650 and to the slip ramp and to south on 650.

         18       The slip ramp is not intended to be a regional

         19  alternate to Powder Mill Road.  There is a need for local

         20  traffic to have an option to get to the beltway or to get to

         21  650 S. without having to be funneled through the Powder Mill

         22  intersection.  Right now, anybody going south on 650 or

         23  going to the outer loop is funneled through Powder Mill.

         24  And by providing this alternate option for the local

         25  traffic, it creates substantial improvements to the
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          1  intersection.

          2       We believe that there are ways that neighborhood

          3  traffic calming can be implemented.  As discussed, there are

          4  a number of options.  Are any of them perfect?  Probably

          5  not.  But they will improve the existing situation.  They

          6  will help to address the proposed situation.  Thank you.

          7       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Mr. Zachary

          8  Marks with HOC.

          9       MR. MARKS:  Good evening.  Zach Marks with HOC.  HOC

         10  is the owner of Holly Hall Apartments and we have been the

         11  owner of Holly Hall Apartments for almost 50 years.  So

         12  we've been in the community for long time.  And so we have

         13  watched things change and we have watched many things not

         14  change.  And we know very much that the East County has been

         15  passed over for investment for very long time.

         16       So, you know, the Victory Crossing Senior Housing, new

         17  community up at 650 and 29, is one of the first new

         18  residential properties in the area.  And that is partly due

         19  to Commission investment.  And throughout the White Oak

         20  Science Gateway Master Plan process we have consistently

         21  tried our best to create opportunities that, of course,

         22  first further our mission, but also create an opportunity

         23  for reinvestment, at long last, in the East County.

         24       And so from the perspective of our future residents,

         25  who will be both a senior and multifamily families and
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          1  improved New Hampshire is of vital importance for everything

          2  from getting to work to the future BRT, allowing it to flow

          3  in a much better way that creates an actual second option

          4  for transit, and also allows for, in particular, fire and

          5  rescue.  It's pretty important to our senior communities

          6  that will be both at the north end and the south end of 650

          7  between 29 and 495.

          8       We also have made sure that, despite the fact that we

          9  were – there is increased density, we have worked very hard

         10  to make sure that we have the opportunity to invest now in

         11  traffic improvements.  Again, we could simply write a check

         12  and move on, but we have consistently worked very hard over

         13  the past few years to make sure that we can do more than

         14  that and simply invest in this intersection.  And frankly,

         15  if something that improves an intersection that is so

         16  vitally in need of it, if something can improve it like this

         17  and we don't do it, then really what – what was the LATIP

         18  for and what improvements could possibly work to begin to

         19  cure that F rating?

         20       And lastly, as someone who wants to get up in front of

         21  hearings and commissions and boards and councils and

         22  everybody else and talk about why affordable housing

         23  investment should occur in particular neighborhoods, it's

         24  important that we don't create traffic problems; that we

         25  solve traffic problems.  Because if we pay this fee and we
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          1  move on and we don't make those traffic improvements, then a

          2  few years from now nobody's going to remember this hearing.

          3  All they are going to know is that HOC built something new

          4  and the traffic got worse.  Thank you.

          5       MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.

          6       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Mr. Eric

          7  Price.

          8       MR. PRICE:  Good evening.  My name is Eric Price.  I'm

          9  the CEO for HIT advisors.  I'm the consultant to the ATU

         10  Technology and Education Center, which is an affiliate of

         11  the Amalgamated Transit Union.  And with me also this

         12  evening is Dan Smith, who is the Assistant General Counsel

         13  at ATU, and representing the president of the ATU, Larry

         14  Hanley.

         15       As you know, ATU Tech owns the 45-acre campus located

         16  at 10,000 New Hampshire Avenue at the intersection of Powder

         17  Mill Road.  The campus contains the Tommy Douglas Center and

         18  related facilities together with the headquarters and

         19  operations of the Amalgamated Transit Union.  In this

         20  location, ATU Tech, is directly affected by traffic

         21  conditions on New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road.  In

         22  addition, ATU Tech is exploring opportunities to further

         23  develop campus consistent with the White Oak Gateway – White

         24  Oak Science Gateway Master Plan.

         25  While there is no set timetable for such development,




�
                                                                        32



          1  if and when it occurs, it will likely affect and be affected

          2  by multiple traffic conditions.  We have been briefed by the

          3  Duffie Companies regarding the transportation improvements

          4  that they are proposing be incorporated in the White Oak

          5  Local Area Transportation Improvement Program.  The Duffie

          6  Companies are developing properties on both sides of New

          7  Hampshire Avenue, which is testified today, including Holly

          8  Hall, an immediate abutter to the ATU Tech campus.

          9       We are appearing today in support of the LATIP

         10  improvement package proposed by the Duffie Companies.  We

         11  believe these specific improvements to be carried out by the

         12  Duffie Companies as part of the LATIP are essential to

         13  improving traffic conditions on New Hampshire Avenue at the

         14  area continues to develop.

         15       The LATIP is a critical component in the

         16  revitalization of the vision created by the White Oak

         17  Science Gateway Master Plan.  We respectfully request that

         18  the Montgomery County Department of Transportation adopt the

         19  proposed LATIP improvements, specifically the widening of

         20  Powder Mill Road west of New Hampshire Avenue to the

         21  extension of the northbound right turn lane east of New

         22  Hampshire Avenue, and three, the slip ramp along Elton Road

         23  along with associated calming measures.  Thank you for your

         24  consideration.

         25  MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
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          1       MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Next, we have Mr. Tim Kamas.

          2       MR. KAMAS:  Hello and thank you for letting me speak

          3  tonight.  My name is Tim Kamas.  I live at 1232 Catherine

          4  Road in Springbrook Manor and I work in Hillandale.  I

          5  support the proposed LATIP improvements to make the Master

          6  Plan work and ensure the LATIP dollars stay in East County.

          7  I think that the package should be approved.

          8       I'm that person who moved to this neighborhood because

          9  of the amenities and connectivity of the area.  These are

         10  good things.  I don't want to drive 30 minutes to the

         11  grocery store to fill a prescription or grab a bite to eat.

         12  My children go to school at St. Luke's across from Mrs.

         13  Kay's on the way downtown.  On occasion, I am picking them

         14  up while I'm at work, so I'm popping out during lunch hour

         15  and picking them up.  Every time I'm making this trip, even

         16  though I know where I'm going, I type it into my GPS and I

         17  add 15 minutes on because it's not uncommon that I'm having

         18  to wait through one, two, sometimes three cycles at the

         19  Powder Mill U-turn.

         20       When I was just waiting at Elton Road and staring at

         21  where I want to go.  That I'm waiting through two or three

         22  cycles means that there's another 20 or 30 cars ahead of me

         23  that probably feels the same way.  They are not all here.

         24  They may still be trying to get home from work.  I

         25  understand the concerns about cut through traffic, but
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          1  that's coming from another County and will continue to come

          2  from another County.  GPS applications know the fastest way

          3  to get anywhere in real time.  You don't stop the bucket

          4  from filling up by plugging a hole in the bucket.  You turn

          5  off the water.  A one-way sign or a do not enter sign do

          6  just that.  But from what I can tell, that the question for

          7  Prince Georges County.

          8       Technical analysis is the key discussion point here.

          9  A bunch of really smart people took a lot of time and used

         10  facts, studies, and calculations to come up with these

         11  plans.  Then a bunch of really smart people at DOT and SHA

         12  analyzed them with facts and calculations.  And their

         13  conclusion was that these plans work.  I very much

         14  appreciate your time and any help you can provide in getting

         15  me to my kids quicker and home in time for dinner.

         16       MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.  Don't overestimate our

         17  intelligence.

         18       MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Next we have Les Powell.

         19       MR. POWELL:  For the record, my name is Les Powell

         20  with the firm of Charles P. Johnson & Associates.  And I

         21  worked at Charles P. Johnson & Associates for 34 years.  We

         22  are located at 1751 Elton Road.  And there are approximately

         23  anywhere from 60 to 75 people in our office, 50 percent of

         24  which have found that the traffic at the intersections of

         25  Elton Road, Powder Mill Road, the speed on Elton Road are so
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          1  horrible that for us to go ahead and leave, of which the 50

          2  percent of us have to head westbound on 495, we actually cut

          3  through the residential neighborhood by going down Elton to

          4  Wooded Way to Green Forest out to Powder Mill.

          5       And then we fight with the three lanes of left turning

          6  traffic to try make it over to the westbound ramp.  The slip

          7  ramp would solve a lot of those problems that – the 30 or so

          8  of us that have to cut to that neighborhood would stop doing

          9  it.  We would all – we used to have that, the pleasure of

         10  having that slip ramp.  It was there for a temporary time,

         11  probably 15 years ago.  And it's greatly missed.  Tim spoke

         12  with the three cycles of lights.  That's just at the U-turn.

         13  Sometimes it takes three cycles of lights just to get on to

         14  New Hampshire Avenue northbound to be able to get there to

         15  make that U-turn.

         16       The traffic calming devices on Elton Road would help

         17  the employees in our company, as quite a few of them, on

         18  nice days we walk up to the shopping center to get lunch.

         19  And it would make it a lot easier to cross over Elton Road

         20  because of the speeds that we have there.  Thank you very

         21  much for your time.

         22       MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.

         23       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next, we have Ms. Lillie

         24  Brown.

         25  MS. BROWN:  My name is Lillie Rashard (phonetic)
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          1  Brown.  I live at 2006 Forest Dale Drive.  I'm in the

          2  Hillandale Forest section of Hillandale.  Our community is –

          3  would be directly negatively impacted by the slip ramp.  We

          4  already have a serious concern with cut through traffic and

          5  speeders.  We have safety issues in our streets and we beg

          6  you to look at what this will do to our community.  We are

          7  concerned about safety on our neighborhood streets.

          8       I have heard talk about New Hampshire and Powder Mill

          9  Road, traffic there.  But what about the residential

         10  streets?  I haven't heard enough concern about what this

         11  improvement will do to our community streets.  We have a

         12  right to feel safe in our neighborhood.  And at this time,

         13  we are not feeling safe with the cut through traffic, the

         14  volume, and the speed, and the aggression.  When we are

         15  backing out of our driveway or turning into the driveway,

         16  they are aggressive drivers forcing us off – almost

         17  literally forcing us off the street.

         18       And I feel like that the elected officials and the

         19  staff have a responsibility for safety when you make

         20  decisions.  Montgomery County currently is dealing with

         21  fatalities on the streets.  So we are cautioning you not to

         22  push the fatalities on our residential streets.  It's just a

         23  matter of time with all of this traffic cutting through.

         24       There is talk about maybe making Riggs and Wooded Way

         25  a one-way out of the neighborhood.  That would push the
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          1  traffic to Forest Dale or Forest Hill.  So all we are doing

          2  now is kicking the can down the street from one area to

          3  another.  We would like to see a solution to the problem.

          4  So as you move forward with the decision, please look at how

          5  it's impacting the entire area.  I can understand what is

          6  happening –

          7       MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.  Thirty seconds.

          8       MR. POWELL:  Thirty seconds – in the neighborhood and

          9  in the shopping center.  But then there are – what about the

         10  residential area?  We have a concern as well and it's

         11  safety.  Thank you.

         12       MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.

         13       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next we have Ms. Margie

         14  Georgean-Rood.

         15       MS. GEORGEAN-ROOD:  Good evening.  My name is Margie

         16  Georgean-Rood.  I am the president of the Hillandale

         17  Citizens Association, and this is our statement from the

         18  executive board.

         19       The Hillandale Citizens Association appreciates the

         20  Duffie Companies investment in our community.  However, the

         21  current White Oak LATIP proposal in the Hillandale community

         22  specifically to install a slip ramp at the intersection of

         23  New Hampshire Avenue, Elton Road, and the Capital Beltway is

         24  not acceptable due to the safety issues it would cause a

         25  long our adjacent residential streets.
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          1       In particular, the slip ramp included in this proposal

          2  will make cut through traffic in Hillandale Forest all the

          3  more attractive.  This creates real pedestrian safety,

          4  quality of life, and diminishing property value issues in

          5  our community that must be considered in any plan moving

          6  forward.

          7       The New Hampshire Avenue and Powder Mill Road

          8  intersection is the only intersection from the 2016 LATIP

          9  study without a plan in place for transportation

         10  improvements promised by the LATIP process.  There are also

         11  two adjacent areas that need to be included in any traffic

         12  study to adequately address traffic and safety issues in

         13  Hillandale.  These intersections, Powder Mill Road and Riggs

         14  Road, and the portion of New Hampshire Avenue between the

         15  Capital Beltway and Oak View Drive must be considered as

         16  part of a truly comprehensive look at the traffic challenges

         17  in this area.

         18       As much as we agree on the need to see improvements to

         19  the traffic problems in Hillandale and appreciate the Duffie

         20  Companies efforts to invest directly in the community, we do

         21  not agree that the slip ramp is the right improvement.  The

         22  proposed slip ramp will make cut through traffic in

         23  Hillandale Forest, a current and long-standing safety issue,

         24  even worse.  Our community requires a detailed traffic and

         25  right-of-way study in order to holistically assess the
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          1  improvements needed in our area.  We encourage County

          2  officials to fulfill the other promises of the LATIP, which

          3  are coordination, equity, and transparency with a thorough –

          4       MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.

          5       MS. GEORGEAN-ROOD:  -- independent evaluation of this

          6  critical court order.  Thank you.

          7       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Next we have Margo B Hall.

          8  Ms. Margo Hall.

          9       MS. HALL:  Good evening.  I'm Dr. Margo B. Hall.  I

         10  reside at 10202 Green Forest Drive, Silver Spring, Maryland,

         11  and I'm a resident of Hillandale Forest community.

         12       Just a few points that I would like to make.  I, as a

         13  resident, would not encourage the development of the slip

         14  ramp.  I recognize the problems that we have a traffic in

         15  this area, as in many areas.  However, over the years that I

         16  have been in the community, which are considerable, a number

         17  of years, there has been no community engagement with all of

         18  the stakeholders that would be affected by a slip ramp and

         19  the additional engagement of transportation through a

         20  community that have been designed many years ago and not for

         21  the increased traffic there.

         22       The traffic studies that have been done have been

         23  wonderful, but they have not included the internal community

         24  through which these problems are attempting to be solved.

         25  There is a need to understand what the residence of this
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          1  densely populated small part of the community that is

          2  bi-county be considered.  We pay taxes.  We are proud of our

          3  community.  We are proud of its reputation.

          4       Now what happens with the slip ramp and whichever of

          5  these solutions is proposed, is that it has a negative

          6  impact on our quality, on the years of our life because of

          7  safety concerns, and on school buses that have to go to the

          8  community, on local issues like trash collection.  Currently

          9  those streets are not designed to handle the frequency and

         10  the weight of the traffic that comes through.  As it is, if

         11  we park on both sides of the streets that are involved

         12  throughway, barely can a single car go either up the hill on

         13  Wooded Way to Elton Road or down the hill.

         14       Now with the inclusion of additional traffic, you're

         15  going to interrupt people's property lines in order to

         16  expand the streets to engage this additional traffic, one

         17  way or both ways.  This is going to severely limit our

         18  ability to have a walkable community, a friendly community.

         19  And there is no value added, honestly, for the interior of

         20  our community.

         21       MR. THOMMANA:  Thirty seconds.

         22       MS. HALL:  We want this to be a valuable, wonderful

         23  place to live.  But this solution to the slip ramp as a

         24  solution is not appropriate at this time.  Thank you.

         25  MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
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          1       MR. THOMMANA:  That was our last – do we have anybody

          2  that signed up?

          3       MR. CONKLIN:  If anybody else would like to sign up at

          4  this time, please do so.  See Gary and he can fill out a

          5  card.  We have time.  We will get as many speakers in as we

          6  can.

          7       MR. BOSSI:  First name is Clinton E. Scott Jr.

          8       MR. SCOTT:  Good evening.

          9       MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening.

         10       MR. SCOTT:  I am Clinton E. Scott Jr.  I reside at

         11  1779 Elton Road.  I've been a resident for 39 years.

         12       I can tell you with the first experience of the slip

         13  ramp about 15 years ago, it had a very negative impact on

         14  our community.  And by negative impact, I mean there were

         15  significant safety issues.  You've heard some of these

         16  safety issues voiced today.  There was also increased

         17  traffic.  I know you've heard about cut through traffic, but

         18  I want to reiterate that that is a very serious problem.

         19       I don't see a solution with this Beltway slip ramp.

         20  It didn't solve the problem 15 years ago.  It aggravated the

         21  problem.  And it's not the correct solution today.  I've

         22  spoken continuously with fellow residents on Elton Road and

         23  Wooded Way over 39 years.  No one is in favor of a Beltway

         24  slip ramp.  So I'm here today – I've already submitted

         25  written testimony – to once and for all, let's put this
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          1  issue to rest.  Let's kill it and move on to a more

          2  acceptable solution.  Thank you.

          3       MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.

          4       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.

          5       MR. BOSSI:  Steven Smith.

          6       MR. SMITH:  Good evening.  My name is Steven Smith and

          7  I reside at 10201 Riggs Road in the immediate area.

          8       And I support the residents of Montgomery County right

          9  across the street from me who are in opposition to the

         10  proposed slip ramp.  I have no position on the other

         11  proposed traffic projects.  I'm in opposition to the slip

         12  ramp because of the increased traffic it will bring onto

         13  Riggs Road, bring onto Elton, and Wooded Way.  There is a

         14  lot of traffic authority diverting onto those thoroughfares.

         15       And I support a broader area of investigation rather

         16  than letting the beltway be the cutoff point for the transit

         17  analysis.  Actually, I would go down past Oak View to

         18  Adelphi because a lot of the traffic problems at the Powder

         19  Mill and Beltway area result from northbound traffic that's

         20  trying to enter the Beltway.  There is a single entrance

         21  ramp for both eastbound and westbound traffic.

         22       Putting a slip ramp – and a lot of the turnaround

         23  traffic, the U-turn traffic at Powder Mill northbound off of

         24  New Hampshire to get onto the westbound, it's people who are

         25  avoiding the backup on northbound New Hampshire trying to
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          1  get onto that single entrance ramp.  They are coming up,

          2  going under the beltway on New Hampshire and making U-turns

          3  to go westbound.  So putting a slip ramp there, they're just

          4  going to make that left turn there on the slip ramp

          5  regardless of whether or not there is a no left turn sign or

          6  not.

          7       The current traffic that has been counted as making a

          8  U-turn there is not negligible, but it's well below the

          9  sensitivity rating.  And I don't think that putting that –

         10  putting the residents at risk there for the sake of a

         11  negligible amount of U-turn traffic is going to solve the

         12  problem.  Because what else is going to happen is that

         13  people are going to use Riggs Road northbound to take the

         14  Elton Way – Wooded Way, Elton onto the slip ramp to avoid

         15  standing in traffic on northbound New Hampshire.

         16       Currently the traffic that is coming from College Park

         17  is going to – taking Adelphi Road to New Hampshire, going up

         18  and stacking up for several blocks trying to get onto that

         19  single entrance.  And what they're going to do is once there

         20  is a slip ramp there, they're going to come up Riggs Road

         21  and go down to that neighborhood.

         22       The other thing that hasn't been taken into

         23  consideration is the impact of the recently enacted or

         24  activated traffic signal for the inbound or the outer –

         25  excuse me – the inner loop traffic that's going southbound
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          1  on to New Hampshire.  That is not backing up traffic on

          2  southbound New Hampshire and these people are aggravated at

          3  Elton –

          4       MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.  Your time is up so I'm going to

          5  have to –

          6       MR. SMITH:  Okay.

          7       MR. THOMMANA:  And you do have written testimony.

          8       MR. SMITH:  They get at Elton and they are now coming

          9  up Elton to go down New Hampshire or go down Riggs Road.

         10       MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.

         11       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.

         12       MR. SMITH:  Thank you.

         13       MR. THOMMANA:  If there's anybody else?

         14       MR. BOSSI:  We have three, maybe four more.

         15       MR. THOMMANA:  Okay.

         16       MR. BOSSI:  Jeff McNeil.

         17       MR. MCNEIL:  Hello.  Jeff McNeil, Hillandale resident.

         18  I would like to take a second to say that I'm mere days away

         19  from my masters in real estate development from the

         20  University of Maryland.  While I've been there I've studied

         21  under Professor extraordinaire, Zach Marks.  Love that guy.

         22       MR. CONKLIN:  When are finals?  Just kidding.

         23       MR. MARKS:  You're just --

         24       MR. CONKLIN:  We will give you five extra seconds.

         25  MR. MARKS:  -- working on your grade?
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          1       MR. MCNEIL:  Yeah.  A mere weeks away.  I'm here as a

          2  resident to say I have no doubt that the studies that have

          3  shown the slip ramp will take trips out of the intersection

          4  and help the traffic in there.  I'm concerned though that

          5  the slip ramp will also make the cut through traffic worse.

          6  And I don't believe that we've identified the right

          7  combination of traffic calming measures to fully protect

          8  that part of the neighborhood.

          9       I would like to acknowledge that we have met with

         10  Montgomery County DOT and some of the things that they have

         11  proposed, I think that they are positive.  But I don't think

         12  we've identified it fully yet.  So I hope that we can come

         13  to a conclusion on those before we move forward.  But until

         14  we do that, it's hard, from a resident perspective, to

         15  support putting the slip ramp in.  Okay.  That's all.

         16       MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.

         17       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.

         18       MR. BOSSI:  We have two more.  Richard Hayne.

         19       MR. HAYNE:  Yeah.  My name is Richard Hayne.  I live

         20  at 2007 Wooded Way on the curve.  And I did send some

         21  comments in and I copied some local people in the community

         22  and Eileen was kind enough to answer many of the questions

         23  for me, that I had posed.

         24       I'm here to speak – I'm glad that there are

         25  improvements in the community.  I have no negative animus
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          1  towards the Duffie Company or – in fact, I think of you most

          2  of those improvements positively.  And I'm glad that you are

          3  doing the transportation studies in working on this.  This

          4  is important to our community.  But I do oppose the slip

          5  ramp.

          6       I've lived in Chicago, Houston, Columbus, Ohio,

          7  Detroit.  I've driven in Jakarta, London, Paris.  There's

          8  going to be congestion in big cities, okay?  And I don't

          9  like it, but what I want to talk about is accidents,

         10  accidents on Wooded Way.  There were approximately five

         11  accidents on Wooded Way, the upper half of Wooded Way, in

         12  the first six months of this year.  I want to talk about

         13  human bodies that are hauled off in ambulances.

         14       I want to talk about property that is damaged,

         15  people's front yard, trees are knocked – small trees,

         16  obviously, are knocked down.  I want to talk about the car

         17  that goes into a telephone pole and you rush out there

         18  because we hear the accident, you know?  We are right there.

         19  And we rush out.  And this was not this year.  And this

         20  woman was screaming because the woman in the passenger seat

         21  is comatose.  I don't know if she lived.  I don't know if

         22  she died.  You know, the ambulance comes, and I don't get in

         23  their way.

         24       That, to me, is really important stuff there.  You

         25  know, it's more important than convenience, inconvenience.
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          1  It's more important than waiting for a little longer in

          2  traffic, which everybody does in urban areas.  I'm glad

          3  you're trying to reduce it, but you're going to increase

          4  accidents.  And I don't know how you can be held responsible

          5  for that, but I wish there was a way to be held accountable

          6  for decisions that harm human bodies and cause --

          7       MR. THOMMANA:   Thirty seconds.

          8       MR. HAYNES:  -- tens of thousands of dollars of

          9  property damage and damage to cars. I mean, local property

         10  and damaged cars.  I do not understand the urgency of doing

         11  this and I ask you to wait until you have a clear plan that

         12  will reduce the traffic and eliminate the slip ramp.  Thank

         13  you.

         14       MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.

         15       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.

         16       MR. BOSSI:  The last person on the list is Gary Perry,

         17  Sr.

         18       MR. PERRY:  Hi, good afternoon.

         19       MR. CONKLIN:  Good evening.

         20       MR. PERRY:  Good evening, yeah.  I want to reiterate

         21  the gentleman there.  I think he pretty much put it in a

         22  nutshell.  I live in Hillandale Forest also.  And safety,

         23  like Ms. Brown said, safety would be a primary concern.  But

         24  also, you know, I tried to get a full visual of how this is

         25  going to be.  I hope it's not a foregone conclusion and this
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          1  is just a formality.  I just want to say that.

          2       But I try to get a visual how this actually will work

          3  out.  And I also give people talking about convenience, but

          4  we have a lot at stake here in this community.  We already

          5  have traffic of tractor-trailers coming through and many

          6  accidents, like the gentleman said.

          7       But I want to put emphasis on, once the word gets out

          8  that this slip ramp is there, it's definite, without a

          9  doubt, there will be excessive traffic coming through

         10  Wooded, coming through Forest Dale, coming through Forest

         11  Hill.  It's – and I heard the gentleman back there talk

         12  about kids, picking his kids – that's a great thing.  But we

         13  have kids living in the neighborhood.  We have young kids

         14  riding bikes.  It's just a regular neighborhood.

         15       Now, when this traffic becomes congested, which it

         16  will, let's not fool ourselves.  It sounds like we trying to

         17  flower this up, or paint this as something it's not.  It

         18  will be congested.  And as a stakeholder in this community,

         19  not only the safety, but our property values, like I heard a

         20  couple of residents say, our property values will plummet.

         21       So I'm trying to weigh between the convenience and the

         22  skin in the game and it just doesn't weigh out.  In my

         23  opinion, it doesn't weigh out.  So I just wanted to just add

         24  that.  Thank you.

         25  MR. CONKLIN:  Thank you.
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          1       MR. THOMMANA:  Thank you.  Nobody else?  Okay.  Well,

          2  we've gone through all the testimonies.  Thank you everybody

          3  for coming out.  If --

          4       MR. CONKLIN:  I would just like to thank everybody for

          5  their thoughtful and polite comments and we look forward to

          6  sort of collecting all of this, digesting all the

          7  information before us in making a decision.  I don't have a

          8  specific timeline on that, but we will be sure to

          9  communicate whatever decision is reached when that occurs.

         10  We have a few more minutes.  If there are any specific

         11  questions, we can answer them at the displays in the back.

         12  Thank you again.

         13       (Off the record at 8:12 p.m.)
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